
City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

Public Hearing - Ordinance updates of sheds, truck route and 4-wheelers1.

Call to Order2.

Citizens' Concerns3.

Agenda Additions and Deletions4.

Approval of Consent Agenda
a. Council Minutes of the June 8, 2021 
b. Liquor Store bills for May 2021
c. Bills paid between Council meetings and Council bills
d. Late water/sewer bills
e. General Fund/Special Revenue Money Market Account Report 
f.  2021 Investment Schedule/Bond Schedule
g.  Budget Reports
    1.  General Fund
    2.  Water Fund
    3.  Sewer Fund
h. LG220 Application for Exempt Permit-Vergas Fire Relief Assn (10/16/21)

5.

Committee Reports
Park Advisory Boarda.

Planning Commissionb.

Personnelc.

Event Center Advisory Boardd.

6.

Looney Daze Permits7.

City Attorney8.

Ottertail County Property - 140 E Linden St9.

Small Cities Development Program10.

2020 Audit11.

Ordinance Updates12.

Grass Ordinance13.

Denise Layman14.

Dock and Lift Storage on City Property15.

Construction Permits
a.  150 E Herman St
b.  1011 East Scharf Ave
c. 105 Main St

16.

Pickleball 17.

Veterans Memorial18.

LMC Fall Forum Meeting19.

Staff Reports
League of MN Cities Conference - Albright, Fischer, Lammersa.

MN Municipal Clerks and Finance Officers Conferenceb.

20.
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Utilities Superintendent Reportc.

Liquor Store Manager Reportd.

Information & Announcements
 MN Rural Water Conference – Aug.24-26, 2021 (DuFrane) St Clouda.

 Clerks Advanced Academy-September 23-24, 2021 (Lammers)b.

Municipal Beverage Association (MMBA), September 25-28, 2021 (Lammers) Arrowwoodc.

21.

Adjournment22.
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

5. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Council Minutes of the June 8, 2021 
b. Liquor Store bills for May 2021
c. Bills paid between Council meetings and Council bills
d. Late water/sewer bills
e. General Fund/Special Revenue Money Market Account Report 
f.  2021 Investment Schedule/Bond Schedule
g.  Budget Reports
    1.  General Fund
    2.  Water Fund
    3.  Sewer Fund
h. LG220 Application for Exempt Permit-Vergas Fire Relief Assn (10/16/21)

 

 

Files Attached

• 2021 July Liquor Store Bill Listing.pdf 

• City bill listing between Council Meetings.pdf 

• 2021 July Claims List.pdf 

• AgedBalance_07072021 (1).pdf 

• 2021 General Fund Special Revenue.pdf 

• 2021 Investment & Bond Schedule.pdf 

• LG220 Application for Exempt Permit- Vergas Fire Releif Assn.pdf 

• 2021 Sewer Budget.pdf 

• 2021 Water Budget Comparison.pdf 

• 2021 General Budget comparison.pdf 

• 06-08-2021 Council Minutes.pdf 
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City of Vergas Liquor Store Checks Paid in June 2021

Vendor Description Total

American Bottling Company 90.50

Artic Glacier 626.10

Artisan Beer Company  1,875.40

Bergseth Bros 23,232.44

Beverage Wholesalers 5,875.09

Breakthru Beverage MN Wine and Spirits 2,455.86

City of Vergas Payroll 2,943.65

City of Vergas Water/sewer 59.87

Colonial Life Employee Ins, reimbursed 159.86

Datamann, Inc 26.20

DCR Brewing Company 34.25

D-S Beverage 14,656.07

Fergus Falls Daily Journal Advertising 249.50

Great Plains Nat Gas Utility 30.36

Henry's Foods 1,019.76

Internal Revenue Service 2021 Withholding Tax 778.30

Jack Pine Brewery 240.00

Johnson Brothers Liquor Co 4,156.12

Leighton Broadcasting Advertising 300.00

MN Dept. of Revenue Sales Tax 7,003.63

MN Dept. Revenue 2021 Withholding Tax 68.75

NCR Credit Card Fees 142.35

Newling Asphalt Services Stripping of parking lot 250.00

Otter Tail Power Utility 462.32

Paustis Wine & Spirits 614.00

Phillips Wine & Spirits 6,236.75

Public Employees Retirement  Assoc. Payroll 498.42

Schepper Custom Builder's Inc Replace boards on side of building 1,748.00

Southern Wine & Spirits of MN 3,061.47

Viking Coca-Cola Bottling Co 673.95

Vinocopia 905.21

Total 80,474.18

June Receipts 98,634.31

June Balance $18,160.13

May Operating Income (Loss) $13,168.31

2021 Total Operating Income (Loss) $31,328.44
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CITY OF VERGAS 

Bill Listing for  June 10 to July 09, 2021

VENDOR DESCRIPTION TOTAL

Adobe Reader All Depts., Computer Program 16.10

Best Western Kelly Inn Clerk, conference 351.39

City of Vergas Payroll 12,626.95

Green Mill St Cloud Clerk, conference meal 24.16

Internal Revenue Services 2021 Withholding Tax 3,146.14

Lake Region Electric Sign, electricity 12.67

Microsoft All depts., Office 365 21.48

MN Dept. of Revenue Sales Tax 56.37

MN Dept. Revenue 2021 Withholding Tax 525.11

Nelson, Amy Event, return deposit 75.00

Northland Monument Park, engraving 1,890.00

Public Employees Retirement  Assoc. Payroll 1,880.93

RDO Equipment Company Park, lawn mower 5,728.96

US Bank St Paul MN Go Water and Sewer Rev Bond 1,740.00

Vergas State Bank Shazam Card 1.00

  Total for bills paid between Council Meetings $28,096.26
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DetailAccount NameAccount #TotalClaim #DescriptionVendorDate

7/13/2021 To 7/13/2021Date Range : 

7/9/2021Claims List for ApprovalCity of Vergas

$653.48 54217LS, Gg, Ev, Shop, phone, 

fax, internet, security

Arvig Communication 

Systems

07/13/2021

Liquor Store - Manager - 

Off-Sale

$132.16 609-49751-321-

City Shop $64.00 100-43010-321-

EVENT CENTER $209.91 100-45110-321-

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $247.41 100-41010-321-

$217.98 54218Employee, insurance 

employee reinbursed

Colonial Life07/13/2021

Clerk $58.12 100-41405-999-

Liquor Store - Manager - 

Off-Sale

$159.86 609-49751-999-

$109.67 54219Water  & Sewer, 

operating parts

Core & Main LP07/13/2021

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$54.83 601-49440-210-

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$54.84 602-49490-530-

$299.61 54220Parks, St, Water, Sewer, 

supplies

Dacotah Paper Company07/13/2021

Highways, Streets & Roadways $83.22 100-43110-211-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$58.58 601-49440-211-

Parks $157.81 100-45210-211-

$75.00 54221St, Park, Wtr, Swr, 

reimbursement for cell 

phone

Michael DuFrane07/13/2021

Highways, Streets & Roadways $18.75 100-43110-321-

Parks $18.75 100-45210-321-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$18.75 601-49440-321-

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$18.75 602-49490-321-

$25.00 54222Park, St, Phone 

reimbursement

Matthew Engebretson07/13/2021

Parks $12.50 100-45210-321-

Highways, Streets & Roadways $12.50 100-43110-321-
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DetailAccount NameAccount #TotalClaim #DescriptionVendorDate

7/13/2021 To 7/13/2021Date Range : 

7/9/2021Claims List for ApprovalCity of Vergas

$17.39 54223Parks, supplyFranklin Fence  

Company, Inc.

07/13/2021

Parks $17.39 100-45210-210-

$204.67 54224Event, Shop,  2021 utilityGreat Plains Natural Gas 

Company

07/13/2021

EVENT CENTER $100.87 100-45110-380-

City Shop $103.80 100-43010-380-

$792.54 54225Wtr, chemicalsHawkins, Inc07/13/2021

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$792.54 601-49440-218-

$7.95 54226PArk, head hunter toolHansons Plumbing & 

Heating, Inc.

07/13/2021

Parks $7.95 100-45210-210-

$7,500.00 542272020 AuditHoffman, Philipp, & 

Knutson, PLLC

07/13/2021

Liquor Store - Manager - 

Off-Sale

$3,375.00 609-49751-301-

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $2,125.00 100-41010-301-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$1,000.00 601-49440-301-

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$1,000.00 602-49490-301-

$218.36 54228All Departments, cell 

phone reimbursement 

Cl, mileage for 

conference

Julie Lammers07/13/2021

Clerk $25.00 100-41405-321-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$25.00 601-49440-321-

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$25.00 602-49490-321-

Clerk $143.36 100-41405-330-

$242.92 54229Pks, operating fuelLakes Area Co-operative07/13/2021

Parks $242.92 100-45210-210-

Page 2 of 6Report Last Updated: 08/29/2014

Page 8 of 161



DetailAccount NameAccount #TotalClaim #DescriptionVendorDate

7/13/2021 To 7/13/2021Date Range : 

7/9/2021Claims List for ApprovalCity of Vergas

$499.00 542302021 Advertising, Becker 

- Otter Tail Counties Mn 

Guide

Lincoln Marketing Inc07/13/2021

Liquor Store - Merchandise 

Purchases - Off-Sale

$249.50 609-49750-340-

EVENT CENTER $249.50 100-45110-340-

$315.95 54231Pk, St, telescopic wand, 

i-beam, gloves, chop 

saw, coil

L & M Supply, Inc.07/13/2021

Highways, Streets & Roadways $127.98 100-43110-245-

Parks $127.99 100-45210-245-

Parks $59.98 100-45210-245-

$30.65 54232Yard Waste, lighting & 

power for camera

Lake Region Electric 

Cooperative

07/13/2021

YARD WASTE $30.65 100-43128-380-

$297.00 54233Gov,training-Lammers, 

Albright, Fischer

League of Minnesota 

Cities

07/13/2021

Council/Town Board $198.00 100-41110-331-

Clerk $99.00 100-41405-331-

$2,152.00 54234Engineering services-88 

Park View Drive, 

Easement Skating

KLJ Engineering LLC07/13/2021

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $2,152.00 100-41010-303-

$319.48 54235Copier, contractMarco Inc07/13/2021

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $106.49 100-41010-200-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$106.49 601-49440-200-

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$106.50 602-49490-200-

$910.00 54236Parks, Parking CurbsMenahga Concrete 

Products Inc

07/13/2021

Parks $910.00 100-45210-220-

$10.00 54237Reg/Boiler & PressureMN Department of Labor 

& Industry

07/13/2021

EVENT CENTER $10.00 100-45110-400-
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DetailAccount NameAccount #TotalClaim #DescriptionVendorDate

7/13/2021 To 7/13/2021Date Range : 

7/9/2021Claims List for ApprovalCity of Vergas

$19.30 54238Employee Life InsMinnesota Life Insurance 

Company

07/13/2021

Clerk $3.00 100-41405-131-

Highways, Streets & Roadways $3.00 100-43110-131-

Highways, Streets & Roadways $13.30 100-43110-999-

$34.53 54239Employee short term 

Insurance

Madison National Life Ins 

Co, Inc

07/13/2021

Parks $5.75 100-45210-130-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$5.76 601-49440-130-

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$5.76 602-49490-130-

Clerk $17.26 100-41405-130-

$495.00 54240St, $985,000 General 

Obligation Improvement 

Bonds Services Paying 

Agent Annual Fee and Int

Northland Trust Services, 

Inc

07/13/2021

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $495.00 412-41010-611-

$416.00 54241St, Signs and postsOtter Tail County 

Treasurer

07/13/2021

Highways, Streets & Roadways $416.00 100-43110-400-

$110.81 54242All Depts, operating 

supplies

Olson Oil Co.07/13/2021

Highways, Streets & Roadways $110.81 100-43110-210-

$2,361.33 54243All depts, utilityOtter Tail Power 

Company

07/13/2021

Street Lighting $734.24 100-43160-380-

EVENT CENTER $389.15 100-45110-380-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$410.53 601-49440-380-

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$289.23 602-49490-380-

City Shop $81.29 100-43010-380-

Parks $456.89 100-45210-380-

$1,667.50 54244Legal FeesPeloquin, Jenson PLLC07/13/2021

City/Town Attorney $1,667.50 100-41610-304-
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DetailAccount NameAccount #TotalClaim #DescriptionVendorDate

7/13/2021 To 7/13/2021Date Range : 

7/9/2021Claims List for ApprovalCity of Vergas

$273.00 54245WW, Water, ChemicalsRMB Environmental 

Laboratories, Inc

07/13/2021

Sewer Utilities - Administration 

and General

$253.00 602-49490-218-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$20.00 601-49440-218-

$648.89 54246Parks, Lawn Mower 

repairs

RDO Equipment 

Company

07/13/2021

Parks $648.89 100-45210-580-

$305.35 54247Park, Event, garbage pick 

up

Steve's Sanitation, Inc.07/13/2021

Parks $198.99 100-45210-384-

EVENT CENTER $106.36 100-45110-384-

$65.00 54248Event, smart room 

equipment service

Signature Home 

Technologies

07/13/2021

EVENT CENTER $65.00 100-45110-300-

$25.51 54249Hazardous Waste, waterVergas Liquor Store07/13/2021

PUBLIC SAFETY $25.51 100-42010-210-

$750.00 54250Yard Waste, Fire callCDH-Vergas Fire 

Department

07/13/2021

YARD WASTE $750.00 100-43128-300-

$310.67 54251All Depts, suppliesVergas Hardware07/13/2021

Parks $149.79 100-45210-210-

Water Utilities - Administration 

and General

$119.93 601-49440-210-

Liquor Store - Manager - 

Off-Sale

$40.95 601-49751-210-

Total For Selected Claims $22,381.54 $22,381.54 

Page 5 of 6Report Last Updated: 08/29/2014

Page 11 of 161



DetailAccount NameAccount #TotalClaim #DescriptionVendorDate

7/13/2021 To 7/13/2021Date Range : 

7/9/2021Claims List for ApprovalCity of Vergas

DateBruce E Albright City Council/Town Board

DateJulie A Bruhn City Council/Town Board

DateLogan  M Dahlgren City Council/Town Board

DateNatalie K Fischer City Council/Town Board
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AGED BALANCES CITY OF VERGAS
DATE: 07/09/2021     AUTHOR: VERJL22
CRITERIA: ACCT#: 0 - 999999999        NAME: 0 - Z        ZIP: 0 - 0           * includes unbilled transactions
STATUS KEY: N=NORMAL W=NEW C=CUTOFF O=CHARGEOFF I=INACTIVE F=FINAL D=DISABLED R=RENTER L=LANDLORD

Acct# Stat Customer Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Balance

21 N BENJAMIN KRIEG $90.32 $82.11 $3.56 $0.00 $175.99

331 N NASH, DUSTN $103.24 $91.13 $117.75 $0.00 $312.12

501 N PHILLIP KERN $86.73 $79.39 $101.09 $37.35 $304.56

530 N DANIEL HOARD $87.56 $78.51 $100.28 $35.34 $301.69

550 N HOWE, JEREMIAH $114.58 $91.62 $78.38 $128.30 $412.88

570 N TONY LICENSE $104.73 $100.12 $145.56 $26.09 $376.50

660 N BOYD, ANTHONY $83.39 $74.72 $51.71 $0.00 $209.82

711 N OLSON, SHELBY $232.78 $183.26 $180.23 $108.82 $705.09

1180 N WANNA BE $380.12 $310.29 $270.14 $0.00 $960.55

1301 N WANNA BE $68.43 $62.21 $56.55 $0.00 $187.19

1346 N MOE, CLIFFORD $131.98 $113.99 $94.35 $0.00 $340.32

1651 N WEIBYE, RYAN $86.91 $78.47 $69.15 $0.00 $234.53

2000 N LENDE, BRIAN $171.78 $134.89 $57.39 $0.00 $364.06

7701 N BRACKEN, JOSEPH & $131.13 $95.75 $93.05 $82.95 $402.88

Totals(14): $1,873.68 $1,576.46 $1,419.19 $418.85 $5,288.18

Page: 1
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General Fund/Special Revenue Money Market Account

2020 Balance Interest

2021 

Interest

2021 

Purchased 2021 sold 2021 Sold

06/30/2021 

Balance

City Shop 3,040.27 2.94% 1.51 3,041.78 

Easements 5,210.95 5.04% 2.58 5,213.53 

Event Center 27,422.08 26.50% 13.60 27,435.68 

General 10,453.80 10.10% 5.19 10,458.98 

Park 13,206.83 12.76% 6.55 13,213.38 

Sand Seal (Seal Coating) 23,844.83 23.04% 11.83 23,856.66 

Sidewalk 11,851.35 11.45% 5.88 11,857.23 

Street Improvements/Equipment 8,457.64 8.17% 4.19 8,461.84 

  Balance $103,487.75 100.00% $51.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $103,539.08 ***

51.33

***Committed total should not drop below $110,000 or be above $165,000 at the end of the year.

West Central Initiive Account

1/1/2021 Interest Donations Purchases

02/28/2021 

Balance

Veterans Memorial 0.00 0.10 2,510.00 0.25 2,509.85

Event Center 8,649.35 0.24 0.00 8,000.00 649.59

Trails, Parks & Recreation 53.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 53.54

     Pickleball 0.00 0.00 5,040.85 1.05 5,039.80

Economic Development 15,312.96 0.79 0.00 0.00 15,313.75

24,015.85 1.13 7,550.85 8,001.30 23,566.53
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City of Vergas

2021 Investment Schedule
Account 

Number 12/31/20 Purchase Sold

Interest 

Earned 06/30/21 Interest Rate

Maturity 

Date

General Fund 325657 103,487.75 0.00 0.00 51.33 103,539.08 0.10 MMDA

Street Debt Service 2006 19919 9,921.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,921.23 1.40 2/24/2022

Sewer Reserve 19753 26,656.77 0.00 0.00 66.46 26,723.23 0.50 6/27/2022

Sewer and Water Debt Service 19759 37,060.94 0.00 0.00 102.76 37,163.70 0.55 7/17/2021

Liquor Fund 20097 71,077.30 0.00 0.00 124.04 71,201.34 0.35 12/11/2021

     Totals 248,203.99 0.00 0.00 344.59 248,548.58 

City of Vergas

2021 Bond Schedule

Title
Purchase 

Date Beg.  Balance Sold Date

Interest 

Rate Bank

Maturity 

Date

Balance 

12/31/2020

Interest 

Due 

12/31/2021

Total Due 

12/31/2021

General Obligation Improvement 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A 42353 299000 0.0243

Vergas 

State 

Bank 2/1/27 245,052.75 33,263.00 278,315.75

2009 Gen. Obligation Water/Sewer 

Refunding Bonds 39973 475000 0.0409

US Bank 

N.A. 1/1/23 187,150.00 83,352.50 270,502.50

General Obligation Improvement 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2019A 43627 985000 0.031

Northland 

Trust 

Services, 

Inc 2/1/40 985,000.00 366,645.72 1,351,645.72
                        Total $1,759,000.00 1,417,202.75 1,900,463.97
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City of Vergas

Sewer Fund 6/30/2021 2021 Budget

Refunds and Reimbursements 0.00 0.00

Sewer User Charges 47,387.05 119,331.16

Sewer Connection Fee 750.00 2,250.00

Sewer Late Fees 1,590.47 3,400.00

Miscellaneous Revenue 50.31 0.00

   Total Revenues $49,777.83 $124,981.16

Disbursements: Legislative (Council/Board)

   Wages and Salaries 1,716.58 3,500.00

   Employer Cont./Soc.Sec./PERA 530.12 650.00

   Total Acct 411 2,246.70 4,150.00

Executive (Mayor/Manager)

   Wages and Salaries 254.52 1,300.00

   Employer Cont./Soc.Sec./PERA 115.34 300.00

   Travel, Mtgs. & Schools 0.00 100.00

   Total Acct 413 369.86 1,700.00

Water Administration & General

   Wages and Salaries 15,781.35 28,990.16

   Part-Time Employees 0.00 2,500.00

   Pensions/PERA/Em cont/Soc. Sec 9,480.82 11,596.00

   Health/Life  Insurance 1,955.10 5,200.00

Workers Compensation 0.00 450.00

   Office Supplies 1,086.55 2,000.00

   Operating Supplies 482.71 5,000.00

Chemicals & Chem Products 281.50 0.00

  Clothiing Allowance 27.98 0.00

   Repair & Maint. Supplies 541.28 1,500.00

Professional Service 500.00 0.00

   Auditor 0.00 850.00

  Telephone 262.50 525.00

   Travel, Mtgs. & Schools 208.80 1,500.00

   Dues 0.00 175.00

   Printing & Publishing 0.00 0.00

License/Permits 850.00 850.00

   Insurance 0.00 1,375.00

   Utility Services 944.35 2,250.00

   Repair & Maintenance Services 0.00 7,000.00

City Share/Assessments 703.28 550.00

Small Tools 0.00 300.00

   Refunds & Reimbursements 0.00 0.00

   Improvements 998.25 46,520.00

   Total Acct 494 34,104.47 119,131.16

   Total Disbursements 36,721.03 124,981.16

Difference 13,056.80 0.00
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City of Vergas

Water Fund 6/30/2021 2021 Budget

Refunds and Reimbursements 233.38 0.00

Water User Charges 51,087.38 111,789.00

Water Connection Fee 1,359.59 2,250.00

Water Late Fees 2,013.73 1,500.00

Sale of Water 120.00 300.00

Replaced Parts 0.00 0.00

   Total Revenues $54,814.08 $115,839.00

Disbursements: Legislative (Council/Board)

   Wages and Salaries 1,705.27 3,600.00

   Employer Cont./Soc.Sec./PERA 527.40 800.00

   Total Acct 411 2,232.67 4,400.00

Executive (Mayor/Manager)

   Wages and Salaries 254.52 1,300.00

   Employer Cont./Soc.Sec./PERA 118.34 6,001.00

   Travel, Mtgs. & Schools 0.00 300.00

   Total Acct 413 372.86 2,200.00

Water Administration & General

   Wages and Salaries 15,394.28 28,990.00

   Part-Time Employees 0.00 2,400.00

   Pensions/PERA 0.00 8,000.00

   Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. 9,192.68 10,494.00

   Health/Life  Insurance 1,955.08 5,200.00

   Office Supplies 1,058.99 2,000.00

   Operating Supplies 420.30 2,000.00

   Chemicals & Chem Products 2,656.80 6,000.00

  Clothiing Allowance 27.99 0.00

   Repair & Maint. Supplies 507.50 1,000.00

   Auditor 0.00 850.00

Professional Services 105.00 0.00

Engineer/Water Tower 2,763.00 0.00

  Telephone 262.50 525.00

   Travel, Mtgs. & Schools 543.30 1,500.00

   Dues 320.00 400.00

   Annual Fees 1,400.16 160.00 *

   Printing & Publishing 0.00 0.00

   Insurance 0.00 1,500.00

   Utility Services 2,708.89 6,000.00

   Repair & Maintenance 163.79 1,530.00

   Water Connection Fees 820.00 1,500.00

   Water Use Fees 0.00 200.00

   Improvements 18,967.24 28,990.00

   Refunds & Reimbursements 0.00 0.00

   Total Acct 494 59,267.50 109,239.00

   Total Disbursements 61,873.03 115,839.00

Difference (7,058.95) 0.00
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2021 

Approved 

9/8/2020 

Budget
Year to Date 

6/30/2021

General Property Taxes (31000) 229,149.00 175,242.86

Penalties & Deling Taxes (31900) 0.00 1,070.13

10% Gaming Fee (31311) 3,000.00 0.00

Gravel Permit 7,000.00 7,000.00

Intoxicating On-Sale Liquor (32110) 6,900.00 0.00

Non-Intoxicating Malt Liquor (32115) 150.00 0.00

Set-Up License (32116) 500.00 0.00

Cigarette Licenses (32117) 175.00 0.00

Conditional Use/Variance Permit (32205) 0.00 550.00

Construction  Permit (32210) 2,000.00 1,830.00

Golf Cart Permit (32213) 140.00 165.00

Recycling Center (32215) 8,500.00 9,658.00

Dog Licenses (32240) 575.00 300.00

Intergovernmental Aid (33404) 131.00 0.00

Federal Grants and Aids (33101) 2,000.00 0.00

State Aids/Fire Relief (33390) 10,000.00 0.00

Local Government and Aids (33401) 37,431.00 0.00

County Grants & Aids for Hwys (33610) 0.00 0.00

Charges of Services (34005) 300.00 426.81

General Government (34100) 0.00 0.00

Fire, Reimbursed (34210) 24,000.00 25,217.95

Recreation (36217) 3,500.00 0.00

Miscellaneous Revenues (36200) 0.00 0.00

Interest Earnings (36210) 100.00 13.69

Rent/Municipal Building (36217) 6,000.00 3,500.00

Rent/Event Center (36225) 5,000.00 2,545.00

Event Center other related charges  (36227) 0.00 0.00

Contributions & Donations (36230) 2,000.00 825.00

Refunds & Reimbursements (36233) 5,000.00 8,473.33

LMCit/Dividends (36235) 3,000.00 0.00

Liquor Store Transfer (39201) 25,000.00 0.00

Total Receipts $381,551.00 $236,817.77

GENERAL GOVERNMENT Workers Compensation 0.00 0.00

(41000) Office Supplies (200) 1,678.00 2,053.98

Operating Supplies (210) 150.00 75.85

Repair & Maint. Supplies (220) 400.00 87.73

Auditor (301) 2,900.00 0.00

Postage (322) 300.00 0.00

Telephone 4,000.00 2,192.19

Dues (345) 900.00 395.80

Printing & Publishing (350) 3,000.00 1,085.60

Insurance (360) 2,500.00 0.00
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Repair & Maintenance (400) 250.00 0.00

Improvements (530) 1,000.00 0.00

Office Equip & Furnishing & IT.(570) 1,000.00 104.00

Refund & Reimbursements 0.00 0.00

   Total General Government $18,078.00 $5,995.15

Legislative (Council/Board) Wages and Salaries (100) 4,200.00 1,919.82

(41100) Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. (122) 1,000.00 798.55

Workers Compensation 0.00 0.00

Office Supplies (200) 0.00 0.00

Travel, Mtgs & Schools 750.00 350.00

Operating Supplies (210) 0.00 0.00

Insurance (360) 200.00 100.00

  Total Legisative $6,150.00 $3,168.37

Executive (Mayor/Manager) Wages and Salaries (100) 1,200.00 255.28

(41300) Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. (122) 350.00 118.66

Workers Compensation 0.00 0.00

Volunteer Appreciation 300.00 0.00

Dues (345) 30.00 0.00

Travel, Mtgs & Schools 1,500.00 0.00

  Total Executive $3,380.00 $373.94

Total General Government 27,608.00 9,537.46

Clerk (41400) Wages and Salaries (100) 17,000.00 8,109.56

Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. (122) 12,000.00 4,839.35

Health/Life Insurance (131) 2,700.00 1,095.24

Telephone 300.00 150.00

Workers Compensation 400.00 0.00

Travel, Mtgs & Schools 1,200.00 232.95

Legal Services (41600) Attorney (304) 7,500.00 6,297.50

Elections (41410) Wages and Salaries (100) 0.00 0.00

Office Supplies (200) 0.00 0.00

Travel, Mtgs. & Schools (211) 0.00 0.00

Total Clerk, Legal services and Elections 41,100.00 20,724.60

Public Safety (42000) Part-Time Employees (103) 0.00 0.00

Fire (42200) Pensions-Relief Assoc. (120) 0.00 0.00

Workers Compensation 4,000.00 0.00
Insurance (360) 6,000.00 0.00
V-CDH Budgeted amount 12,500.00 5,809.26
Miscellaneous (430) 0.00 0.00
Reimbursed Expenses (810) 0.00 30,767.95

Total for Public Safety, Traffic, Fire 22,500.00 36,577.21

City Shop (43000) Operating Supplies (210) 200.00 19.48
Repair & Maint. Supplies (220) 200.00 0.00
Small Tools & Minor Equip (240) 1,000.00 0.00
Internet (321) 804.00 384.00
Insurance (360) 500.00 0.00
Utility Services (380) 3,000.00 1,607.47
Repair & Maintenance Service (400) 500.00 198.99
City Share/Assessments 1,000.00 0.00
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Improvements (530) 1,000.00 0.00

Total For City Shop 8,204.00 2,209.94

Highways, Streets & Roadways Wages and Salaries (100) 13,959.00 10,952.17
(43100) Part-Time Employees (103) 13,365.00 0.00

Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. (122) 10,500.00 6,955.57
Health Insurance (131) 3,500.00 1,931.73
Workers Compensation (150) 200.00 0.00
Office Supplies (200) 200.00 0.00
Operating Supplies (210) 7,000.00 3,944.17
Travel, Mtgs, & Schools 300.00 0.00
Repair & Maint. Supplies (220) 1,500.00 1,347.63
Small Tools & Minor Equip (240) 500.00 0.00
Employee Clothing Allowance (245) 300.00 77.93
Engineer (303) 10,000.00 5,988.50
Telephone 375.00 187.50
Insurance (360) 3,000.00 200.00
Repair & Maintenance Service (400) 3,500.00 626.26
Seal Coating (410) 7,500.00 0.00
Improvements (530) 17,000.00 0.00
Other Equipment (580) 25,000.00 20,871.14

Sidewalk Repair & Maintenance (400) 3,000.00 0.00
Ice and Snow Removal (43125) Part-Time Employees (103) 0.00 0.00

Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. (122) 0.00 0.00
Operating Supplies (210) 0.00 0.00
Fuel/Lubricants (212) 0.00 0.00
Sand & Salt 1,000.00 768.30
Repair & Maintenance (400) 0.00 0.00
Snow Removal (415) 0.00 0.00
Capital Outlay 5,000.00 0.00

Total for Ice Control, Sidewalks, Ice Control 126,699.00 53,850.90

Recycling  Center (43218)
Wages and Salaries (100) 6,000.00 3,182.81
Pensions/PERA (121) 4,000.00 1,886.81
Repair & Maintenance (220) 25.00 450.00
Office Supplies (200) 300.00 251.57
Printing & Publishing (350) 40.00 0.00
Street Lighting (380) 650.00 222.00
City Share/Assessments 500.00 260.37
Improvements (530) 10,000.00 12,735.27

Total for Recycling Center 21,515.00 18,988.83

Street Lighting (43160) Utility Services (380) 10,000.00 4,494.34

Event Center (45100) Part-Time Employees (103) 500.00 0.00
Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. (122) 100.00 0.00
Professional Services 2,000.00 568.10
Workers Compensation 0.00 0.00
Office Supplies (200) 150.00 0.00
Operating Supplies (210) 2,500.00 98.51
Travel, Mtgs, & Schools 0.00 0.00
Repair & Maint. Supplies (220) 1,500.00 250.00
Clothing Allowance 0.00 0.00
Telephone 0.00 0.00
Security Services (300) 2,000.00 0.00
Advertising 1,500.00 1,304.25
Insurance (360) 2,000.00 0.00
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Rug Rental (370) 1,000.00 478.87
Utility Services (380) 6,000.00 2,906.33
Rubbish Service (384) 1,500.00 635.06
Repair & Maintenance (400) 2,000.00 404.25
City Share/Assessments (440) 700.00 199.46
Improvements (530) 20,000.00 6,847.61
Refunds & Reimbursements 0.00 2,013.31

Total for Event Center 43,450.00 15,705.75

Parks (45200) Wages and Salaries (100) 17,000.00 9,174.02
Part-Time Employees (103) 0.00 0.00
Employer Cont./Soc.Sec. (122) 11,500.00 4,803.29
Health Insurance (131) 3,500.00 1,933.98
Workers Compensation 450.00 0.00
Engineering 0.00 0.00
Office Supplies (200) 100.00 0.00
Operating Supplies (210) 7,000.00 4,575.91
Telephone 375.00 187.50
Travel, Mtgs, & Schools 400.00 0.00
Repair & Maint. Supplies (220) 1,500.00 0.00
Employee Clothing Allowance(245) 200.00 77.93
Printing & Publishing (350) 50.00 35.00
Licenses/Permits 350.00 0.00
Insurance (360) 5,000.00 332.00
Utility Services (380) 2,500.00 654.04
Rubbish Service (384) 1,500.00 1,187.36
Repair & Maintenance Service(400) 2,600.00 0.00
City Share/Assessments (440) 1,200.00 535.00
Improvements (530) 18,000.00 19,415.11
Refunds & Reimbursements 0.00 0.00

Total for Parks 73,225.00 42,911.14

Cemetery (49010) Insurance (362) 250.00 0.00
Non-Expenditures Economic Development (46510) 7,000.00 7,000.00

Total Disbursements $381,551.00 $212,000.17

Difference $0.00 $24,817.60
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CITY OF VERGAS 

Informational Meeting on the Pickleball Courts 

VERGAS EVENTS CENTER & ZOOM 

Tuesday, June 8, 2021 

 

The City Council of Vergas met at 6:00 pm, on Tuesday,  June 8, 2021, at the Vergas Event Center and on a Zoom 

hybrid  meeting for a pickleball informational meeting with the following members present: Mayor Julie Bruhn, 

Council Members: Bruce Albright, Paul Pinke and Natalie Fischer. Absent: Logan Dahlgren. Also present: 

Clerk/Treasurer Julie Lammers, Utilities Superintendent Mike DuFrane, Steve Peloquin, Ron Franklin, Sherri 

Hanson, Shannon Charpentier, Maria Sontag, Mike Summers, Jerry Johnson and Barbie Porter of the Frazee-

Vergas Forum. 

 

Bruhn opened informational meeting at 6:00 pm. 

 

Shannon Charpentier reviewed the pickleball project.  

 

Jerry Johnson reviewed the ballfields history and explained he was in favor of a pickleball field but not in the 

location they are requesting. 

 

Charpentier reviewed the maintenance of a pickleball court and stated their organization will be responsible for 

maintenance.  

Sherri Hanson reviewed other locations the organization has looked at for pickleball in Vergas. 

 

Albright reviewed discussion at the last planning commission meeting regarding pickleball: the moving of 

placement of the pickleball courts, questions raised about use of the court, the amount needing to be raised before 

project could proceed and holding an informational meeting. 

 

Bruhn closed informational meeting at 6:25 pm. 

   

CITY OF VERGAS 

PUBLIC HEARING 

VERGAS EVENTS CENTER & ZOOM 

Tuesday, June 8, 2021 

 

The City Council of Vergas met at 6:00 pm, on Tuesday,  June 8, 2021, at the Vergas Event Center and on a Zoom 

hybrid  meeting for a public hearing on commercial tax abatement with the following members present: Mayor 

Julie Bruhn, Council Members: Bruce Albright, Paul Pinke, Logan Dahlgren and Natalie Fischer. Absent: none. 

Also present: Clerk/Treasurer Julie Lammers, Utilities Superintendent Mike DuFrane, Steve Peloquin, Chuck 

Boehn, Vanessa Boehn, Sherri Hanson, Maria Sontag, Mike Summers, Jerry Johnson, Frank Vana, Tony Sailer, 

Engineer Scott Kolbinger, Rebecca Haase and Barbie Porter of the Frazee-Vergas Forum. 

 

Bruhn opened public hearing regarding Tax abatement at 100 S Railway Avenue. The requests are to abate 100% 

of the increase to the City of Vergas portion of real estate taxes related to the commercial property located at 100 S 

Railway Avenue building improvements on the subject properties for a period of up to 5 years.   

 

Lammers reviewed the procedure of commercial tax abatement. Albright reviewed the Economic Development 

Authority board’s approval for the commercial tax abatement.     

 

Mike Summers, applicant reviewed the construction proposed for 100 S Railway Avenue. 

 

Bruhn closed the public hearing at 6:34 pm.  
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CITY OF VERGAS 

COUNCIL MINUTES 

VERGAS EVENTS CENTER & ZOOM 

Tuesday, June 8, 2021 

 

The City Council of Vergas met at 6:00 pm, on Tuesday,  June 8, 2021, at the Vergas Event Center and on a Zoom 

hybrid  meeting for a public hearing on commercial tax abatement with the following members present: Mayor 

Julie Bruhn, Council Members: Bruce Albright, Paul Pinke, Logan Dahlgren and Natalie Fischer. Absent: none. 

Also present: Clerk/Treasurer Julie Lammers, Utilities Superintendent Mike DuFrane, Steve Peloquin, Chuck 

Boehn, Vanessa Boehn, Sherri Hanson, Maria Sontag, Mike Summers, Jerry Johnson, Frank Vana, Tony Sailer, 

Engineer Scott Kolbinger, Rebecca Haase and Barbie Porter of the Frazee-Vergas Forum. 

 

Mayor Julie Bruhn called the meeting to order. 

 

No citizens’ concerns were discussed. 

 

Motion by Pinke, seconded by Fischer to accept agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Motion by Fischer, seconded by Dahlgren to approve the following consent agenda items with typos corrected 

without changing content:  

a. Council Minutes of the May 11, 2021  

b. Board of Review Minutes 

c. Bills paid between Council meetings and Council bills 

d. Liquor Store bills for May 2021 

e. Late water/sewer bills  

Motion passed unanimously.  

 

Bruhn reviewed personnel information regarding the COVID-19 Preparedness plan which has been updated to 

occur with current recommendations.  Motion by Pinke, seconded by Fischer to approve the Covid-19 

Preparedness Plan approved by City Council on June 25, 2020, and updated on June 8, 2021.  Motion passed 

unanimously. Discussed the current Personnel Time Off (PTO) policy of employees not being able to carry over 

more than 200 hours.  Lammers is unable to take time off currently with the responsibilities of both City and 

Liquor Store and has requested Council to approve allowing her to carry over time until July 31, 2021.  Motion by 

Albright, seconded by Pinke to allow Lammers to go above 200 hours of PTO until July 31, 2021.  Motion passed 

unanimously. Bruhn reviewed proposed pay structure based on a pay for performance instead of an automatic pay 

increase annually.  Annually there would be a cost-of-living increase for employees and step increases every 3 

years.  Motion by Dahlgren, seconded by Pinke to accept the 2021 Step Structure.  Motion passed unanimously.  

Bruhn reviewed the City Clerk-Treasurer job description which would be in place once a liquor store manager is 

hired.  Motion by Fischer, seconded by Pinke to approve Clerk-Treasurer job description.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Albright reviewed EDA/HRA meeting held on June 2, 2021 (minutes available at the Vergas City Office).  

Motion by Albright, seconded by Pinke to approve the commercial tax abatement for a period up to 5 years or 

$5,000 for 100 S Railway Avenue.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Lammers reviewed the Vergas Event Center meeting held on May 12, 2021 (minutes available at the Vergas City 

Office).  

 

Sherri Hanson reviewed the Park Board meeting held on May 27, 2021  (minutes available at the Vergas City 

Office). Discussed purchasing buoys for the beach area as we have been contacted by the Otter Tail County 

Sheriff’s department to get a beach permit. Before they will issue a permit for city beach the area needs to be 

outlined with buoys.  Tony Sailer has been attended park board meetings and reviewed the ability for cities to have 
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a park dedication fee.  Park board could build up a fund with fees to every new home built.  These funds can only 

be used for new parks and will help when budget time rolls around. Hanson explained during Looney Days Park 

events they would be collecting donations for our parks.  On July 10-11, 2021, Northern Lights Ski Team will be 

doing a free water-skiing event.  Motion by Albright, seconded by Pinke to purchase 4 buoys for the beach area for 

$1320.00. Motion passed unanimously.  Motion by Albright, seconded by Pinke to spend $2,250 from Newling 

Asphalt Service, LLC. for seal coating the trail. Motion passed unanimously.  Hanson stated she has had a request 

for the City property on W Lake Street for a tractor pull.  General support was given but Council would like to see 

a proposal before giving final approval.  Discussed the need for a sign saying, “no lifeguard on duty”.  DuFrane 

stated there is a sign by the beach currently. Discussed the platform by the boardwalk.  Quote received is for 

$4,500.00 and Council has approved $1,000.00.  Owner of property has signed off on the platform designed by 

KLJ Engineering and has been approved the Ottertail County. Discussed the fact, current owner is using the trail 

for his side by side and 4-wheeler and there are no motorized vehicles allowed on the trail.   Motion by Albright, 

seconded by Pinke to table the discussion for a month. Motion passed unanimously.    

 

Albright reviewed Planning Commission meeting minutes of May 24, 2021 (minutes available at the Vergas  City 

Office).  Albright stated that currently the Planning Commission has 3 Council members.  Motion by Albright, 

seconded by Pinke to accept resignation of Natalie Fischer and appoint Neil Wothe to the Vergas Planning 

Commission.  Motion passed unanimously. Bruhn thanked Fischer for sitting on planning commission the past 7 

years.  Discussed variance hearing that will take place Wednesday, June 9, 2021.  Motion by Dahlgren, seconded by 

Albright to revise the proposals involving permanent structure(s) and/or activity on city property to state 100% of 

funding must be in place before construction could begin.  Motion passed unanimously.  Pickleball courts were 

discussed.  Summers questioned if both baseball fields are used and if City would consider a sports complex.  

Motion by Dahlgren, seconded by Albright to approve the pickleball proposal involving city involving permanent 

structure with the understanding if an alternative site can be located, we will at least look at alternative sites.  Voting 

Yes: none. Voting No: Albright, Dahlgren, Fischer and Pinke.  Motion failed.  Motion by Albright, seconded by 

Fischer to approve pickleball court as defined in the proposal involving city involving permanent structure but prior 

to actual construction if council identifies and alternate property the courts can be moved to that location. Motion 

passed unanimously. Motion by Albright, seconded by Pinke to hire West Central Initiative for the City of Vergas 

Comprehensive Plan for $7,200.  Motion passed unanimously.  Motion by Albright , seconded by Pinke to accept 

task order from KLJ Engineering for Townline Road for $4,000.00.  Motion passed unanimously.  Kolbinger asked 

if the city is looking at the entire Townline Road or just portions of the road within the City Limits.  Task order for 

East Lake Street was discussed to replat the property. Tabled the discussion regarding East Lake Street.  Motion by 

Fischer, seconded by Pinke to appoint Bruce Albright as the City project representative.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Albright reviewed yard waste committee meeting minutes of May 26, 2021 (minutes available at the Vergas  City 

Office).  Vergas Hardware is no longer selling yard waste permits, they are being sold at the City Office and at the 

Vergas Liquor Store.   

 

Mayor Bruhn update Council on information for the American Rescue Plan Act.  Bruhn requested all committees 

review their budgets and be aware of the fiscal recovery.  Motion by Albright, seconded by Pinke to approve 

resolution 2020-004 (A complete text of the resolution is part of permanent public record in the City Clerk’s 

office) regarding the coronavirus local fiscal recovery fund established under the American Rescue Plan Act. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Motion by Pinke, seconded by Fischer to approve construction permit for 275 S Railway Ave for a chain link 

fence and 12x12 gazebo.   Motion passed unanimously.  

 

Motion by Albright, seconded by Pinke to approve construction permit for 230 East Frazee Ave for pickleball 

courts with the criteria discussed in the City Proposals.  Motion passed unanimously.  

 

City Attorney proposals were discussed. Motion by Albright, seconded by Fischer to approve the RFP for new 
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attorney proposal.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 

Utilities Superintendent Mike DuFrane provided the following:  

1. Parks  

A. Lawn Mower see attachment. DuFrane stated the bid for the lawn mower is apart of the State Bidding 

process.  Motion by Pinke, seconded by Albright to purchase a 2013 John Deere Z930M lawn mower for $5,728.96 

plus a cushion seat. Motion passed unanimously. 

B. Baseball fields water is shut off. 4 sprinkler heads are leaking. Parts are ordered.  

2. Wastewater.  

A. 1/3 of sewers main line was jetted last week.  

B. Lift station and catch basin will be cleaned this or next week.  

3. Water plant.  

A. Dehumidifier is not working. In the process of fixing it. Zitzow Electric will be coming to look at the 

dehumidifier tomorrow.  

DuFrane discussed computer and email issues.  Albright questioned if his iPad worked, DuFrane stated he does not 

use iPad for email, he only uses if for zoom.  Council discussed need for new computer. DuFrane has had issues 

with computer zapping its hard drive due to dust, dirt and office conditions.  Albright stated we need an IT person 

to look at the computer.   City of Vergas pays Arvig for IT support which DuFrane has used, and they are unable to 

repair the issue.  KLJ was asked if they had an IT person who would investigate the issue.   Kolbinger said he 

would check if KLJ IT department could look at the computer. DuFrane does not have Office 365 and DuFrane was 

asked to drop off computer at City Office for Office 365 to be place on computer. 

 

Lammers reviewed Liquor Store activities.  

 

The following City meetings were mentioned: 

a.  MN Clerks & Finance Conference-June 15-18, 2021 (Lammers) St Cloud 

b.  League of MN Cities Annual Conference June 22-25 (Fischer, Albright & Lammers) online 

c.  Board of Review Training Opens July 1, 2021 (All Council Members) 

d.  Household Hazardous Waste Mobile Collection July 8, 2021, 10 am -2 pm (Volunteers needed)  

e.  MN Rural Water Conference – Aug.24-26, 2021 (DuFrane) St Cloud 

f.  Clerks Advanced Academy-September 23-24, 2021 (Lammers) 

g.  Municipal Beverage Association (MMBA), September 25-28, 2021 (Lammers) Arrowwood 

 

The business for which the meeting was called having been completed, the meeting was adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 

  

Clerk-Treasurer Julie Lammers, CMC 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

6. Committee Reports

Park Advisory Boarda.

Planning Commissionb.

Personnelc.

Event Center Advisory Boardd.

 

 

Files Attached

• 6.24.2021 Park Board Advisory Minutes_pdf.pdf 

• 06-09-2021 Planning Commission Meeting minutes.pdf 

• 06-28-2021 Planning Commission Meeting minutes.pdf 

• 06-09-2021 Event Center Minutes.pdf 

• Resolution making Townline Road a public roadway.pdf 

• Park - Isaac Ratz Estimate.pdf 

• COVID-19 Business Plan v.5 (002) updated.pdf 
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6.24.2021  Minutes from Vergas Parks and Rec Advisory Board Meeting 
                  3:30 p.m. Vergas Event Center and ZOOM 

1. Members Present: Carol Albright, Steph Hogan, Sherri Hanson, Mike DuFrane, Paul Pinke

      Members Absent:  Julie Lammers, Maggie Puetz

      Others Present:  Tony Sailer, Don Snyder


2.   Additions/Corrections to Agenda:  Add approval of 6.15.2021 Minutes


3.   May Minutes and 6.15.2021 Minutes were approved with a motion by Hogan/Second by 
Hanson.


4.   Budget:   
Hanson opened the discussion calling for more staff to assist with the Long Lake Park.  
DuFrane noted Engebretsen works full time from May - August 23; otherwise he has only 32 
hours weekly.  In years past there was another full time worker and part time worker in addition 
to DuFrane. A problem for DuFrane is they have to focus on people’s complaints instead of 
regular duties; like the picnic tables, tripping hazards on the Pier, whether or not the security 
cameras work, and the plugged water fountain.  Hanson asked if we really need the water 
fountain. DuFrane will establish a regular schedule for a walk through inspection of the park as 
discussed with the Mayor.


The new lawn mower is out of order.  Cost was $5700 plus $4400 for the old one.  Butch 
Zitzow at RDO will be fixing it.


Parking Stops have been purchased and will be picked up in Menagha next week.


City Council wants budget requests by the end of July.  DuFrane will present his requests at 
our July meeting.  Hanson directed DuFrane to email his list to Park Board members one 
week prior to the July meeting.  The Budget will be the primary focus of the July meeting.  

5. COVID Funds Dream List: The City of Vergas will be receiving approximately $36,000.  The 
Parks Board should provide a Dream List for using some of those funds.  The following items 
were suggested:

	 a.  Adult playground/exercise equipment for the Trail and/or Long Lake Park.

	 b.  Educational kiosks on the Trail about plants, trees, and fish located there.  Snyder 
suggested we might get money from civil defense funds if we would include weather reports.

	 c.  Get water fountain in working order.

	 d.  Grills

	 e.   Garbage cans

	 f.    Doggie Dump Station for Tin Can Alley

	 g.  Landscape for Tin Can Alley planter

	 h.  Small boat for installation of buoys and weights

More ideas can be added to the list at the July meeting.


6.  Swim Beach:  Hanson recommended we complete the defined roped area this year with a 
line and floats to address safety issues and make the beach a permitted one, as was discussed 
at the Special Meeting on 6/15.  There was some confusion about whether or not large buoys 
are also required with the rope/buoy system.  DuFrane also reported Lammers was having 
difficulty finding who issues the permit for the beach.  He then noted that the Mayor had 
already directed him to install the rope.  Albright stated for the record her wish to have a more 
clear line of communication among the Council, employees, Mayor, and Parks Board.
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7.  Berm on the Beach: was discussed in #4 above, Budget.


8.  Drain at the Beach:  DuFrane reported there was miscommunication with Dewey’s Septic 
System, so they jetted the culvert under the road instead of the drain.  When Dewey’s comes 
back to clean the lift station they will clean the drain.


9.  “Get on the Water” Event:  the Council approved North Stars Waterski Show Team to 
conducti free waterski lessons at the beach; July 9, 10-6 and July 10, 9-1.  They have provided 
their certificate of insurance to the City.


10.  Looney Days Fundraiser:  The Community Club is okay with the Parks Board “passing 
the hat” at park events:  Waterski Shows (August 13 and 14 at 4:30) and Beatles Tribute Band 
(August 13, 6:30 to 9:00).  We need people to help pass the hat.  It will be noted on the posters 
that funds collected will be used for Long Lake Beach Projects.  


DuFrane suggested selling “raffle” tickets at various events, then sharing the proceeds with 
one lucky winner.  Hanson will find out if that kind of raffle is legal. 

11.  Tin Can Alley Landscaping Bids:  Albright contacted two individuals about the project.  
Isaac Ratz was the lone respondent.  His idea is to remove the large rocks, slope the hill and 
plant grass to make maintenance easier.  Since no one else responded to the request for a bit, 
there was consensus to accept the Ratz bid of $1800 but to get a more detailed breakdown of 
the costs to present to the Council.  Albright will get the detailed estimate and email it to 
Hanson. 

Hanson reported the engravers will be completing the 14 remaining bricks in the very near 
future.   She will get a date from them.


12.  Cheryl’s Garden:  The Mayor asked Albright to bring this item to the Parks Board: to 
relocate the three flag poles at the garden because the flags get shredded by the tree 
branches, which have been trimmed many times.  DuFrane is concerned the poles will be 
damaged when moved and finding time to do it.  Hanson will check with AmVets to find out 
if they could provide new poles at no charge.  DuFrane will check out what it would take 
to move the poles.  Sailer asked if the trees might be cut down instead of moving the poles.  
Albright thought that might be more controversial with the community.   


13.  Other:  Sailer asked if there has been any feedback from the Park Dedication Fund 
proposal.  None has been reported at this time.


Next meeting will be Thursday, July 22, 2021 at 3:30 p.m. in the Event Center and via 
ZOOM.
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CITY OF VERGAS PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 

6:00 pm 

Event Center & Zoom Meeting 

 

The City of Vergas Planning Commission  held a public hearing on Wednesday, June 9, 2021, at 6:00 pm at the 

Vergas Event Center and on Zoom with the following members present Bruce Albright, Van Bruhn, Robert Jacoby, 

Neil Wothe and Paul Pinke. Absent: None. Also, present: Clerk- Treasurer Julie Lammers, Utilities Superintendent 

Mike DuFrane, Julie Bruhn, Tyler Schmid, Jeff Zitzow, Tara Dressen, Dan Bonham and Engineer Scott Kolbinger. 

 

Bruce Albright opened the public hearing at 6:00 pm.  

 

Discussed variance application from 806 Scharf Ave E. City Ordinance 151.21 e3b regarding 10-foot setback on 

side yard, property owner requesting a 9-foot setback on the side yard.  

 

James Bonham discussed project.  They would like to remodel the cabin and extend it out, the lot lines were not 

established in the 70’s.  The house would have a one-foot overhang causes the house to be 8 foot 10 inches from 

lot line and by Scharf Avenue it would be 7.5 inches from the lot line.      

 

Neighbors have not expressed any concerns regarding the project.   

 

The cabin is currently 24 feet wide and 18 feet deep.  They are looking at adding 24 feet towards Scharf Avenue.  

The addition would be 22 feet closer to the road.   

 

Commissioners requested Bonham talk with neighbor regarding their opinion of addition and to stake property 

lines.  Commissioners requested Lammers contact Otter Tail County regarding the ability to addon to a building 

near a lake. 

 

Albright stated we have 60 days to respond to this variance request. 

 

Albright closed public hearing. 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF VERGAS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 

6:00 pm 

Event Center & Zoom Meeting 

 

The City of Vergas Planning Commission was held on Wednesday, June 9, 2021, at 6:20 pm at the Vergas Event 

Center and on Zoom with the following members present Bruce Albright, Van Bruhn, Robert Jacoby, Neil Wothe 

and Paul Pinke. Absent: None. Also, present: Clerk- Treasurer Julie Lammers, Utilities Superintendent Mike 

DuFrane, Julie Bruhn, Tyler Schmid, Jeff Zitzow, Tara Dressen, Dan Bonham and Engineer Scott Kolbinger. 

 

Bruce Albright opened the meeting at 6:20 pm. 

 

Addition of Veterans Memorial was added to agenda. 

 

Motion by Bruhn, seconded by Pinke to approve the minutes of the April 26, 2021, meeting. Motion passed 

unanimously. 
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Status of Recommendation to City Council  

 

Council approved amending the City of Vergas proposals involving permanent structure(s) and/or activity on city 

property to require 100% funding in place. 

Council approved pickle ball courts, but prior to them starting construction, if there is a site the council feels is 

suitable, Council can request they move the courts. 

Council hired West Central Initiative to write comprehensive plan. 

Council accepted Natalie Fisher’s resignation and appointed Neil Wothe.   

 

Variance 

 

Variance was discussed regarding a second variance for 75-foot front yard setback, neighbors being okay with 

addition, and having property staked.  This item was tabled to next month’s meeting. 

 

Construction Permits 

 

Motion by Pinke, seconded by Jacoby to approve construction permit for 301 Altona Avenue for a storage shed to 

be located on tar. Motion passed unanimously. 

Motion by Pinke, seconded by Wothe to approve construction permit for 250 1st Ave N (Vergas Auto) for awning 

and 6x16 seating area.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Old Business: 

 

Nuisance properties were discussed regarding these properties: located at parcel 82000500034000 on old trailer 

house and bulldozer; 401 S Pelican Ave has been cleaned up since receiving the complaint.  Motion by Wothe, 

seconded by Pinke to send Keith Kuehne, property owner of 82000500034000 to remove nuisance of an old trailer 

house.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Tara Dressen stated she has been sent a list of issues regarding violations with landscaping and they have been 

taken care of.  Right of way has been staked and one rock formation is located on their property by a couple of feet.  

Rock structures are for water formation.  The berm that had been requested prior to this meeting has been 

completed. Dressen requested the removal of the two rock formations outside of the culvert area and a swale be 

installed.  Engineer Scott Kolbinger stated there is a need for rock formations and they may want to look at building 

up their driveway.  Dressen stated they would not want to build up the driveway.  Albright questioned DuFrane 

regarding stormwater permit and plans from Ultieg Engineering.  Tabled the discussion until the June 28th meeting.   

 

New Business 

 

Jeff Zitzow, co-owner of 105 Main Street provided information regarding their plans of removal and construction of  

a new building.  There is an issue regarding the parking lot and alley. Tyler Schmidt, co-owner of 105 Main Street 

discussed the alley between liquor store and 105 Main Street.  They are planning on 6 apartments and parking will 

be a concern.  There will be parking spaces behind the building.   

 

Grass Ordinance was provided to commissioners.  Weed Inspector Julie Bruhn asked for guidance of ordinance,  

Does the ordinance include fences, poles and property along the railroad?  Albright read the ordinance 92.38. 

Commissioners stated they will rewrite ordinance and asked Lammers to get ordinances from other communities.   

 

Veteran Memorial Park committee reviewed the plans for the Veterans’ Park proposed on city property. located at 

230 E Frazee Avenue.  Albright stated the proposal needs to be approved by the city before commissioners can 

approve a construction permit. Albright informed Veterans’ Memorial Park committee they would need 100% of 

funding before they would be able to start project, but they could have project approved in stages.   

 

Page 33 of 161



 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm. 

Secretary, 

 

 

Julie Lammers, CMC Clerk-Treasurer 

City of Vergas 
 

Follow Up Actions: 

Attorneys prepare a resolution to allow type two 4-wheelers to be allowed on County Roads (the city truck routes).   

Lammers contacts the county regarding building by the lake. 

Lammers provides other city weed grass (weed) ordinances. 

 

Actions Completed and Removed from Follow up: 

Ness Backhoe to build berm at 88 Park View Drive. 

Lammers contact County regarding cement slab along trail. 

Public Informational meeting June 8 at 6 pm for pickleball court. 

Public Hearing June 9 at 6pm for variance with meeting to follow. 

Lammers to provide interest amounts to Jaron Lammle.  

 

Council recommendations:  

None. 
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CITY OF VERGAS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Monday, June 28, 2021 

6:00 pm 

Event Center & Zoom Meeting 

 

The City of Vergas Planning Commission was held on Monday, June 28, 2021, at 6:00 pm at the Vergas Event Center and 

on Zoom with the following members present Bruce Albright, Van Bruhn, Robert Jacoby, Neil Wothe and Paul Pinke. Absent: 

None. Also, present: Clerk- Treasurer Julie Lammers, Utilities Superintendent Mike DuFrane, Tara Dressen, Dan Bonham, 

Steve Peloquin, Lyle Krieg, Jon Lotzer, Dennis Breitzman, Jaron Lammle and Barry Strelow. 

 

Bruce Albright opened the meeting at 6:00 pm. 

 

Agenda changes consisted of the addition of Veterans Memorial, Sunny Oaks Development and the removal of 88 Park 

View Drive. 

 

Motion by Pinke, seconded by Jacoby to approve the minutes of the June 9, 2021, meeting. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Variance 

Commissioners reviewed the variance for 806 Scharf Ave E, this building is located on a non-conforming lot with a cabin 

within the shore impact zone. Lammers provided the following information: The current cabin is 20 feet from the shoreline.  

Addition would be 48 feet from the shoreline.  Otter Tail County stated they would not allow the addition because current 

cabin is within the Shore Impact Zone (land located between the ordinary high-water level of a public water and a line 

parallel to it at a setback of 50% of the structure setback), but they do not have jurisdiction in the city limits.  County stated 

37.5 feet from ordinary high-water level in the shore impact zone or bluff impact zone.  

 Peloquin read both the city ordinance and the Mn Stature MS 462.357.  

SECTION 6.0 NONCONFORMITIES All legally established nonconformities as of the date of this ordinance may 

continue, but they will  be  managed  according  to applicable  state  statutes  and other regulations of this 

community for the subjects of  alterations and additions, repair after damage, discontinuance of use, and 

intensification of use; except that            the following standards will also apply in shoreland areas: 

Minnesota Statute (MS 462.357, Subd. 1e (link is external) ) states that existing nonconforming structures may be 

continued, including through repair, replacement, restoration, maintenance, or improvement. Generally, under state law, any 

alteration or addition to a nonconforming structure is allowed only where the construction will not increase the 

nonconformity. An expansion is not allowed within the shore impact zone or bluff impact zone - which is half of the 

distance of the structure setback. Legal nonconformities in floodplain areas have more limitations because federal rules are 

more stringent than state law. Most notably, improvements to nonconformities in floodplain areas are limited to 50 percent 

of their current market value. 

Peloquin’s recommendation is to not allow variance because it is an enlargement of the footprint of a non-conforming lot.  

The statues are to eliminate  non-conforming lots.  

 

Motion by Jacoby, seconded by Pinke to deny the variance for 806 Scharf Ave E due to the building being in the shoreline 

impact zone and the lot being nonconforming. Motion passed unanimously.  Peloquin stated he would revisit this if he was 

provided information he may be missing, but he is confident he is correct. The cabin needs to keep its original footprint or 

be demolished and rebuilt to current regulations on the lot. 

 

Commissioners discussed lots in the area that are non-conforming.  The City of Vergas does not have fulltime staff to 

review these type projects so the planning commission will need to take time to review these types of permits. We may 

want to inquire information from the County regarding hiring one of their employees to review permits within the City of 

Vergas. 

 

Construction Permits 

Motion by Jacoby, seconded by Pinke to deny construction permit for 806 E Scharf Avenue for an addition of existing 
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cabin.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Motion by Pinke, seconded by Bruhn to approve construction permit for 380 S Pelican Ave to remove pea gravel and install 

pavers in front yard.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Old Business: 

Townline Road survey is completed by KLJ Engineering.  Peloquin stated the dedication needs to put in with road top as is 

or a description from KLJ Engineering. It is up to the commissioners to decide about the right of way easements by either 

voluntary deed or condemnation.  Peloquin recommended doing the dedication of the roadway and then later get the 

easements as they may take some time. Kolbinger will need to provide description and Council will need to hold a public 

hearing. 

 

Nuisance properties located at parcel 82000500034000 of an old trailer house was discussed and letter has been sent and we 

have not received any response.  The 10 days given to property owner has not been fulfilled.  Lammers will update planning 

commissioners regarding property at the August meeting. 

 

Grass Ordinances from other communities were provided to commissioners.  Commissioners stated would like the  

ordinance rewritten for the City of Vergas.  Albright stated he would review the ordinance from Vergas and other 

communities and bring a recommendation to the August meeting.   

 

New Business 

Veteran Memorial Park committee reviewed the plans for the Veterans’ Park proposed on city property located at 230 E 

Frazee Avenue.  Veteran’s Memorial Committee provided a petition with 316 signatures in favor of the project with 14 of 

those signatures Vergas residents. Motion by Jacoby, seconded by Pinke to have Council approve the construction permit if 

the proposal of projects on City property is approved.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Sunny Oaks Development was discussed as the property owners would like information regarding the project.  They were 

asked to provide a data practices form and payment for Lammers to provide information. The project was apart of the 2019 

Street Project.   

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:15 pm. 

Secretary, 

 

Julie Lammers, CMC Clerk-Treasurer 

City of Vergas 

 

Follow Up Actions: 

Albright to prepare Grass Ordinance. 

Engineer Kolbinger provide description of Townline Road and Council will need to hold a public hearing. 

 

Actions Completed and Removed from Follow up: 

Attorneys prepare a resolution to allow type two 4-wheelers to be allowed on County Roads (the city truck routes).   

Lammers contacts the county regarding building by the lake. 

Lammers provides other city weed grass (weed) ordinances. 

 

Council recommendations:  

Proceed with Townline Road dedication and leave easements to a later date. 

Schedule a public hearing regarding dedication of Townline Road. 

Council approves the construction permit for Veteran’s Memorial if the proposal of projects on City property is approved. 
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CITY OF VERGAS 

Event Center Advisory Minutes 

Vergas Event Center 

6:30 P.M. on Wednesday, June 9, 2021 

 

The City of Vergas Event Center Advisory Committee was called to order by Chairperson Logan Dahlgren on Wednesday, June 

9, 2021 at 6:31 pm with the following members present: Logan Dahlgren, Paul Haarstick, and Vanessa Perry.  Absent: Paul 

Pinke, Julie Lammers, Jay Norby, and Mary Ditterich. Guests included: None. 

 

Approval of the Agenda 

Motion by Haarstick, seconded by Perry to approve the meeting agenda. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Approval of Minutes from May 12, 2021 

Motion by Perry, seconded by Haarstick to approve the minutes from May 12, 2021. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Kitchen Project Update 

Members reviewed the installed doors in the kitchen and reached consensus that their condition was satisfactory for the time 

being. Members agreed that an updated estimate would be necessary. Estimate should be clarified to be for one or two doors, is 

the installer local, and the current price. 

 

Remodeling Project Update 

No updates were provided to the committee. Members reviewed the work progress. Members questioned if the exterior wood 

should be stained. 

 

Smart Room 

The smart room works well and is being used by City staff frequently. Security cameras will be installed soon. 

 

Art Camp 

Organizers of the Art Camp requested use of the Event Center and bathrooms if there is inclement weather during their event. 

Members agreed that there should be no issue as long as there is no conflict with existing reservations. 

 

Council Recommendations 

 None 

 

Follow up Actions 

 None 

 

The business for which the meeting was called having been completed, the meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Paul Haarstick, Secretary 
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City of Vergas 

COVID-19 Preparedness Plan 

The City of Vergas is committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for our staff and employees. 

To ensure that, we have developed the following COVID-19 Preparedness Plan in response to the 

COVID-19 pandemic. Managers and staff are all responsible for implementing this plan. Our goal is to 

mitigate the potential for transmission of COVID-19 in our workplaces and communities, which 

requires full cooperation among our workers, management, and membership. Only through this 

cooperative effort can we establish and maintain the safety and health of our workplaces. 

Management and staff are responsible for implementing and complying with all aspects of this COVID-

19 Preparedness Plan. City of Vergas managers and supervisors are empowered to enforce the 

provisions of this policy. 

Our employees are our most important assets. We are serious about safety, health and keeping our 

staff working at the City of Vergas. Employee involvement is essential in developing and implementing 

a successful COVID-19 Preparedness Plan. Our COVID-19 Preparedness Plan follows Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention (CDC) and Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) guidelines, Federal OSHA 

standards related to COVID-19 and Executive Order 20-48, and addresses: 

• hygiene and respiratory etiquette; 

• engineering and administrative controls for social distancing; 

• customer controls and protections for drop-off, pick-up and delivery; 

• housekeeping, including cleaning, disinfecting and decontamination; 

• prompt identification and isolation of sick persons; 

• special considerations for off-site personnel; 

• communications and training that will be provided to managers and workers; and 

• management and supervision necessary to ensure effective implementation of the plan. 

Screening and policies for employees exhibiting signs and symptoms of 

COVID-19 
All employees will be informed of common signs and symptoms of COVID-19 and are encouraged to 

self-monitor for those symptoms. The following policies and procedures are established to assess 

employee’s health status prior to entering the workplace, and to establish a reporting protocol for 

when they are sick or experiencing symptoms. 
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Approved by City Council on June 25, 2020.      Updated June 8, 2021; July 13, 2021,                                                                                                                    
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Communicating the Need to Stay Home. If employees have a temperature of 100.4 or higher or 

experiencing symptoms while they are at home, they should call, email, or text the Clerk-Treasurer.  

Employees should not come to work if they or a family member is feeling sick or if they have been 

exposed to COVID-19.  If employees are sick or experiencing symptoms while at work, they should 

inform the Clerk-Treasurer and leave for home as soon as possible. 

Leave Policy.  City of Vergas has implemented leave policies that promote workers staying at home 

when they are sick, when household members are sick, or when required by a health care provider to 

isolate or quarantine themselves or a member of their household. Accommodations for workers with 

underlying medical conditions or who have household members with underlying health conditions will 

be implemented. Individuals with underlying health conditions will be permitted to telework or 

maintain strict isolation within the office to the extent possible.   

In addition, a policy has been implemented to protect the privacy of workers’ health status and health 

information. City of Vergas personnel records are maintained and stored in a secure area that is 

accessible only through a lock when it is unoccupied.  .   

Handwashing 
Basic infection prevention measures have been implemented in our workplaces and shall be utilized at 

all times. Employees shall be instructed to wash their hands for at least 20 seconds with soap and 

water frequently throughout the day, but especially at the beginning and end of their shift, prior to any 

mealtimes and after using the restroom. All visitors to the facility will be required to wash their hands 

or use hand sanitizer of greater than 60% alcohol prior to or immediately upon entering the city-owned 

facility. City of Vergas will have both hand soap and hand sanitizer available.   

Employees will be asked to wash their hands at the sink or use sanitizer when they enter the office and 

after handling packages or materials brought in from outside the office.   

Respiratory etiquette:  Cover your cough or sneeze. 
Employees and visitors are being instructed to cover their mouth and nose with their sleeve or a tissue 

when coughing or sneezing and to avoid touching their face, in particular their mouth, nose and eyes, 

with their hands. They should dispose of tissues in the trash and wash or sanitize their hands 

immediately afterward. Respiratory etiquette will be demonstrated on posters and supported by 

making tissues and trash receptacles available to all workers and visitors.  

Employees will be reminded of the need to practice respiratory etiquette during all employee 

meetings.  

Unvaccinated employees will be required to wear a mask when within 6 feet of with others. All 

employees are required to wear protective gear until proof of vaccination is provided to the Clerk-

Treasurer. 
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Social distancing and Personal Protection 
Social distancing and personal protection have been implemented in the workplace through the 

following engineering and administrative controls: 

Work from Home.  Workers will have the opportunity to work from home after covid-19 exposure or 

covid-19 illness., as able or as type work allows.  

Social Distancing.  Workers will be instructed to maintain six feet of distance between them and other 

persons at all times.   

Vehicles.  Employees will not be allowed to carpool or ride together in vehicles, unless both 

vaccinated. 

Residential Property. Non-vaccinated employees entering residential property must wear mask when 

interacting with residents.   

Protective Supplies.  Masks are to be worn anytime a non-vaccinated employee is within 6 feet of 

other individuals without a barrier between them. Disposable latex-free gloves will be available for 

handling packages and other similar tasks. Gloves should be disposed of properly after use and hands 

washed after removing gloves. 

Deliveries.  Delivery workers will be instructed to leave mail and packages at the reception desk or 

they can be delivered to the back door of the liquor store and doorbell used to inform clerk of delivery.  

Materials received will be distributed by employees from there.   

Gathering.  Employees, visitors, and customers are prohibited from gathering in groups without 

maintaining social distancing. Employees and visitors shall maintain six feet of distance between each 

other while conducting business. 

Housekeeping 
Regular housekeeping practices have been implemented, including routine cleaning and disinfecting of 

work surfaces, equipment, tools and machinery, and areas in the work environment, including 

restrooms, break rooms, meeting rooms, and drop-off and pick-up locations. Frequent cleaning and 

disinfecting will be conducted in high-touch areas, such as phones, keyboards, touch screens, controls, 

door handles, copy machines, tills, delivery equipment, etc. The Event Center’s cleaning service will 

provide limited cleaning and disinfecting of tables, countertops and other surfaces after hours, but it 

will be virtually impossible to know whether a surface is virus-free prior to using it. Employees should 

clean a work area in the common areas of the Event Center prior to using it and when they are done 

using it. Overall cleaning at a minimum should be done prior to start of work and at the end of each 

day.   

Page 42 of 161



 
   
 

Approved by City Council on June 25, 2020.      Updated June 8, 2021; July 13, 2021,                                                                                                                    

4 

 

Preparedness Plan communication and training 
This Preparedness Plan will be provided electronically or in paper form to all employees on June 25, 

2020, and necessary training will be provided. Additional communication and training will be ongoing 

as conditions change and provided to all employees who did not receive the initial training. Instructions 

will be communicated to delivery personnel about how drop-off, pick-up and delivery services will be 

conducted to ensure social distancing practices are followed and about the recommendation that 

delivery workers use face masks when dropping off, picking up or accepting delivery. Managers and 

supervisors are to monitor how effective the program has been implemented by sharing their 

observations and discussing potential modifications during weekly staff meetings. Management and 

workers are to work through this new program together and update the employee training as 

necessary. This COVID-19 Preparedness Plan has been certified by the City of Vergas Safety Committee 

and approved by the City of Vergas City Council and will be posted throughout the workplace on June 

25, 2020. The COVID-19 Preparedness Plan was updated on June 8, 2021 and July 13, 2021 and will 

continue to be updated as necessary. 

Certified by:  ________________________________________ {print Name} 

   

  _________________________________________{Signature} 

 

Immunization are readily available for COVID-19, it is recommended all employees be immunized 

utilizing funds available through their personal insurance carrier.  
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

7. Looney Daze Permits

 

 

Files Attached

• Temporary 1-4 Day On-Sale Liquor License.pdf 

• VCC Beer Garden.pdf 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

10. Small Cities Development Program

 

 

Files Attached

• Small Cities Dev..pdf 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

11. 2020 Audit

 

 

Files Attached

• Audit Report-Vergas-12.31.20.pdf 
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ORGANIZATION SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 

 
 

 
City Council 

 
 

Position 

 
 

Term Expires 
 
Elected 

 
 

 
 

 
          Dean Haarstick1 

 
Mayor 

 
December 31, 2020 

 
          Julie Bruhn2 

 
Councilmember 

 
December 31, 2022 

 
          Logan Dahlgren 

 
Councilmember 

 
December 31, 2022 

 
          Natalie Fischer 

 
Councilmember 

 
December 31, 2024 

 
          Paul Pinke 

 
Councilmember 

 
December 31, 2022 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Appointed 

 
 

 
 

 
           Julie Lammers 

 
Clerk-Treasurer 

 
Indefinite 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
1 Replaced by newly elected Mayor Julie Bruhn effective January 1, 2021. Term expires December 31, 2022. 
2 Replaced by newly elected Bruce Albright effective January 1, 2021.  Term expires December 31, 2024. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
City Council 
City of Vergas 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each 
major fund of the City of Vergas, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control over financial reporting relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
   
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control over financial reporting relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

1541 Highway 59 South | Thief River Falls, MN 56701 | Phone: 218-681-4078 | choffman@hpmaudit.com 
 

Colleen Hoffman, Director 
Crystelle Philipp, CPA 
Marit Martell, CPA 
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities 
 
Management has not adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 for the Fire Relief Association. 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that GASB Statement No. 68 be adopted 
for governmental activities, including Fire Relief Associations. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets, 
net position, and revenues of the governmental activities have not been determined. 
 
Qualified Opinion 
 
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities 
Fund” paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the City of Vergas, Minnesota, as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Unmodified Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the business-type activities and each major fund of the City of Vergas, Minnesota, as of December 31, 2020, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise City of 
Vergas’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section and the other schedules section, as listed in the table of 
contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The introductory and other schedules sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.   
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2021, on our 
consideration of the City of Vergas’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

 
Hoffman, Philipp, & Martell, PLLC 
June 29, 2021 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 (Unaudited)  

 
 

The management of the City of Vergas offers readers of the City’s Financial Statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Vergas for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2020.  The Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides comparisons with the previous year and 
is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, and 
should be read in conjunction with the City’s basic financial statements that follow this section. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The total net position of governmental activities is $1,937,739, of which $872,732 is the net investment in 
capital assets, $156,328 is restricted for debt service, and $908,769 is unrestricted.  The total net position 
of governmental activities increased by $454,715 for the year ended December 31, 2020.  This is 
attributed primarily to State grants received for the Long Lake Trail Project. 
 
The total net position of business-type activities is $1,510,545, of which $1,205,508 is the net investment 
in capital assets, and $305,037 is unrestricted.  The total net position of business-type activities increased 
by $45,600 in 2020, primarily as a result of positive operating income in the Liquor Enterprise Fund.  
 
At the close of 2020, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$444,479, a decrease of $39,406 over the prior year. Of the total fund balance amount, $263,192 is legally 
or contractually restricted, $104,858 is formally committed for specific purposes, and $76,429 is noted as 
the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund. Maintaining an adequate fund balance is necessary to 
provide City services throughout the year.   
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City’s finances.  These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting 
used by most private-sector businesses.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
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The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes). 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of 
activities: 
 
• Governmental activities—Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including general 

government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, culture and recreation, and economic 
development.  Property taxes and intergovernmental revenues finance most of these activities. 

 
• Business-type activities—The City charges fees to cover the costs of certain services it provides.  

Included here are the operations of the liquor store and the utilities – sewer and water. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found as Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Vergas, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All 
of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
 Governmental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
 reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike 
 the government-wide financial statements, fund-level financial statements focus on near-term 
 inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available 
 at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
 financing requirements. 
 

 Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
 statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
 information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By 
 doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s short-term 
 financing decisions.  Both the Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds and the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds provide a reconciliation to 
 facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City reports three governmental fund types: General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service.  
Information is presented separately in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and in the 
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the 
General Fund, the 2006 Street Project Debt Service Fund, and the 2019 Street Project Debt Service 
Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.  Data for the Nonmajor Vergas EDA Special 
Revenue Fund is also presented with the major funds. 
 

Page 62 of 161



Page 7  

 
The City of Vergas adopts an annual budget for its General Fund.  A budgetary comparison schedule 
has been provided for this fund to demonstrate compliance with its budget. 

 
 Proprietary Funds  The City of Vergas maintains three proprietary funds.  1) The Liquor Enterprise 
Fund is used to account for the City’s liquor store.  Financing is provided through the liquor store’s 
sale of off-sale liquor. 2)  The Sewer Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the 
City’s sewer system.  Financing is provided by charges to residents for services. 3) The Water 
Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s water system.  Financing is 
provided by charges to residents for services. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information 
as the government-wide financial statements, and are included in the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities as business-type activities.  All of the enterprise funds are considered to 
be major funds.  

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to 
the financial statements can be found beginning on page 25 of this report. 
 
Other information—In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
also presents certain required supplementary information.  The City also provides other information 
including a schedule of intergovernmental revenue. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Over time, net position serves as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position.  The City’s assets 
exceeded liabilities by $3,448,284 at the close of 2020. The largest portion of the City’s net position 
(approximately 60 percent) reflects its net investment in capital assets (i.e., land, construction in progress, 
infrastructure, buildings and improvements, and machinery and equipment).  It should be noted that this 
amount is not available for future spending. Approximately 5 percent of the City’s net position is 
restricted for debt service and 35 percent of the City’s net position is unrestricted.  The unrestricted net 
position amount of $1,213,716 as of December 31, 2020, may be used to meet the City’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens. 
 
The City’s overall financial position increased from last year. Total assets increased by $446,499, and 
total liabilities decreased by $20,184 from the prior year.  Deferred outflows related to pensions increased 
by $10,143, and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions decreased by $23,489, resulting in an 
increased net position of $500,315 from the prior year. This increase was primarily due to grant funding 
and donations received for the Vergas Trails Project.         
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NET POSITION

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets 1,050,735$     1,114,768$     457,719$        469,638$        1,508,454$     1,584,406$     
Capital assets 2,146,203       1,669,340       1,285,507       1,239,919       3,431,710       2,909,259       

     Total assets 3,196,938$     2,784,108$     1,743,226$     1,709,557$     4,940,164$     4,493,665$     

Deferred outflows - pensions 10,261$          7,016$            21,806$          14,908$          32,067$          21,924$          

Other liabilities 10,700$          7,976$            47,554$          17,973$          58,254$          25,949$          
Long-term liabilities outstanding 1,255,699       1,289,546       200,428          219,070          1,456,127       1,508,616       

     Total liabilities 1,266,399$     1,297,522$     247,982$        237,043$        1,514,381$     1,534,565$     

Deferred inflows - pensions 3,061$            10,578$          6,505$            22,477$          9,566$            33,055$          

Net position
 Net investment in capital assets 872,732$        406,653$        1,205,508$     1,119,919$     2,078,240$     1,526,572$     
 Restricted 156,328          108,530          -                      -                      156,328          108,530          
 Unrestricted 908,679          967,841          305,037          345,026          1,213,716       1,312,867       

     Total net position 1,937,739$     1,483,024$     1,510,545$     1,464,945$     3,448,284$     2,947,969$     

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues
 Program Revenues
  Fees, charges, fines and other 189,064$        77,616$          932,460$        776,911$        1,121,524$     854,527$        
  Operating grants and contributions 258,220          46,030            2,214              10,206            260,434          56,236            
  Capital grants and contributions 82,224            634,389          -                      -                      82,224            634,389          
 General Revenues and Transfers
  Property taxes 249,477          210,375          -                      -                      249,477          210,375          
  Grants and contributions not
   restricted to specific programs 42,212            35,904            -                      -                      42,212            35,904            
  Investment earnings 377                 808                 1,472              1,313              1,849              2,121              
  Insurance dividends 2,946              1,216              2,723              2,509              5,669              3,725              
  Transfers 24,797            40,000            (24,797)           (40,000)           -                      -                      

     Total revenues 849,317$        1,046,338$     914,072$        750,939$        1,763,389$     1,797,277$     

Expenses
 General government 83,837$          77,918$          -$                    -$                    83,837$          77,918$          
 Public safety 34,842            83,148            -                      -                      34,842            83,148            
 Highways and streets 100,675          109,223          -                      -                      100,675          109,223          
 Sanitation 21,107            19,004            -                      -                      21,107            19,004            
 Culture and recreation 102,107          111,833          -                      -                      102,107          111,833          
 Economic development 12,702            10,314            -                      -                      12,702            10,314            
 Interest 39,332            11,379            -                      -                      39,332            11,379            
 Liquor -                      -                      654,078          555,087          654,078          555,087          
 Sewer -                      -                      103,184          95,300            103,184          95,300            
 Water -                      -                      111,210          103,673          111,210          103,673          

     Total expenses 394,602$        422,819$        868,472$        754,060$        1,263,074$     1,176,879$     

Increase (decrease) in net position 454,715$        623,519$        45,600$          (3,121)$           500,315$        620,398$        

Net position, January 1, as previously reported 1,483,024$     859,505$        1,464,945$     1,493,106$     2,947,969$     2,352,611$     

Prior period adjustment -                      -                      -                      (25,040)           -                      (25,040)           

Net position, January 1, as restated 1,483,024$     859,505$        1,464,945$     1,468,066$     2,947,969$     2,327,571$     

Net position, December 31 1,937,739$     1,483,024$     1,510,545$     1,464,945$     3,448,284$     2,947,969$     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements, with a focus on short-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable 
resources.  In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
At the end of 2020, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $444,479.  
59 constitutes the restricted fund balance, 24 percent constitutes formally committed fund balance, and 17 
percent constitutes unassigned fund balance. 
  
The General Fund is the operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the General 
Fund’s total fund balance was $179,917.  The General Fund’s committed fund balance was $103,488 and 
unassigned fund balance was $76,429.  The General Fund has no restricted fund balance.  As a measure 
of the General Fund’s liquidity, it is useful to compare total fund balance to total fund expenditures for 
2020.  Total fund balance represents 21 percent of total General Fund expenditures.  
 
In 2020, the fund balance amount in the General Fund decreased by $192,366, primarily as a result of the 
transfer out of the remaining bond proceeds not used for the 2019 Street Project into the Debt Service 
Fund. 
 
The fund balance of the 2006 Street Project Debt Service Fund decreased by $3,735 from the prior year, 
primarily as a result of payment of debt. 
 
The fund balance of the 2019 Street Project Debt Service Fund increased by $158,397, primarily as a 
result of the transfer in of the remaining bond proceeds not used for construction of the 2019 Street 
Project in the General Fund. 
 
The fund balance of the nonmajor Vergas Economic Development Authority (EDA) Special Revenue 
Fund decreased by $1,702, primarily as a result of engineering expenses for a housing study. 
 
Proprietary Fund 
 
The Liquor Enterprise Fund reported an operating income in 2020 of $82,253, resulting from an 
unusually busy year. 
 
In 2020, the Sewer Enterprise Fund reported an operating loss of $7,033, and the Water Enterprise Fund 
reported an operating loss of $5,037, due to depreciation expense. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Actual revenues were more than overall final budgeted revenues by $386,46, with the largest positive 
variances in intergovernmental and miscellaneous.  Actual expenditures were more than overall final 
budgeted expenditures by $477,208, primarily as a result of the unbudgeted Vergas Trail Project. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 
31, 2020, amounted to $3,431,710 (net of accumulated depreciation).  The total increase in the City’s 
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately 15 percent.  This increase was 
primarily due to the addition of infrastructure for the Vergas Trail Project. 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Land 94,238$          94,238$          -$                    -$                    94,238$          94,238$          
Construction in progress 55,346            -                      -                      -                      55,346            -                      
Infrastructure 1,843,301       1,412,285       917,915          890,224          2,761,216       2,302,509       
Buildings and improvements 40,042            43,002            334,308          349,695          374,350          392,697          
Machinery and equipment 113,276          119,815          33,284            -                      146,560          119,815          

     Total capital assets 2,146,203$     1,669,340$     1,285,507$     1,239,919$     3,431,710$     2,909,259$     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding of $1,257,175 which is backed by 
the full faith and credit of the government. 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

General Obligation Improvement
 Refunding Bonds of 2015 198,000$        225,000$        -$                    -$                    198,000$        225,000$        
General Obligation Improvement
 Improvement Bonds, Series 2019A 985,000          985,000          -                      -                      985,000          985,000          
General Obligation Water and Sewer
 Revenue Refunding Bonds,
  Series 2009, net of bond discount -                      -                      39,050            121,425          39,050            121,425          
Capital Equipment Notes of 2017 35,125            52,687            -                      -                      35,125            52,687            

1,218,125$     1,262,687$     39,050$          121,425$        1,257,175$     1,384,112$     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
Minnesota Statutes limit the amount of debt that the City may have to three percent of its total market 
value, excluding revenue bonds.  At the end of 2020, overall debt of the City is below the three percent 
debt limit.  
 
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET   
 
- The City depends on financial resources flowing from, or associated with, both the Federal 

Government and the State of Minnesota.  Because of this dependency, the City is subject to changes 
in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to Federal and State laws and 
Federal and State appropriations.  It is also subject to changes in investment earnings and asset values 
associated with U.S. Treasury Securities because of actions by foreign governments and other holders 
of publicly held U.S. Treasury Securities.   
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- For 2021, the most significant challenge will be adjusting to the impacts of the worldwide 
Coronavirus pandemic.  The total extent of the impact on the City, both financially and operationally, 
are still uncertain at this time. 

 
- Specific unemployment statistics for the City of Vergas are not available.  However, according to the 

Minnesota Department of Employment & Economic Development, the unemployment rate for Otter 
Tail County was 4.9 percent as of December 31, 2020. This is lower than the statewide rate of 6.5 
percent and lower than the national average rate of 6.7 percent. 
 

- The 2020 population of Vergas according to the League of Minnesota Cities was 364, an increase of 
33 since the 2010 census of 331. 

 
- On December 8, 2020, the City of Vergas set its 2021 revenue and expenditure budgets. 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This annual financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Vergas for all those 
with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report 
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City of Vergas Clerk-
Treasurer, City Hall, P.O. Box 32, Vergas, Minnesota 56587.  
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 1

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 285,252 $ 63,848 $ 349,100
Investments 113,409 134,794 248,203
Taxes receivable
  Current 887 -      887
  Prior 6,475 -      6,475
Special assessments receivable
  Current 541 375 916
  Prior 24,999 10 25,009
Accounts receivable 34 5,219 5,253
Due from other governments 45,735 -      45,735
Internal balances 9,321 (9,321) -      
Inventory -      238,667 238,667
Special assessments receivable - noncurrent 564,082 24,127 588,209
Capital assets 
  Non-depreciable 149,584 -      149,584
  Depreciable - net of accumulated depreciation 1,996,619 1,285,507 3,282,126

      Total Assets $ 3,196,938 $ 1,743,226 $ 4,940,164

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to pensions $ 10,261 $ 21,806 $ 32,067

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 6,340 $ 37,804 $ 44,144
Salaries payable 4,126 4,579 8,705
Due to other governments 234 5,171 5,405
Long-term liabilities
  Due within one year 102,416 41,119 143,535
  Due in more than one year 1,097,646 41,078 1,138,724
  Net pension liability 55,637 118,231 173,868

    Total Liabilities $ 1,266,399 $ 247,982 $ 1,514,381

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to pensions $ 3,061 $ 6,505 $ 9,566

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets $ 872,732 $ 1,205,508 $ 2,078,240
Amounts restricted for debt service 156,328 -      156,328
Unrestricted amounts 908,679 305,037 1,213,716

    Total Net Position $ 1,937,739 $ 1,510,545 $ 3,448,284
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Program Revenues

Operating

Fees, Charges, Grants and

Expenses  Fines and Other Contributions

Functions/Programs

  Governmental activities

    General government $ 83,837 $ 60,852 $ 6,615

    Public safety 34,842 -      900

    Highways and streets 100,675 -      -      

    Sanitation 21,107 -      -      

    Culture and recreation 102,107 128,212 250,705

    Economic development 12,702 -      -      

    Interest 39,332 -      -      

      Total governmental activities $ 394,602 $ 189,064 $ 258,220

  Business-type activities

    Liquor $ 654,078 $ 736,331 $ -      

    Sewer 103,184 92,434 1,106

    Water 111,210 103,695 1,108

      Total business-type activities $ 868,472 $ 932,460 $ 2,214

      Total $ 1,263,074 $ 1,121,524 $ 260,434

General revenues and transfers

Property taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Investment earnings

Insurance dividends

Transfers

  Total general revenues and transfers

    Change in Net Position

Net Position - January 1

Net Position - December 31
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EXHIBIT 2

  

Capital Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Grants and Governmental Business-type

Contributions Activities Activities Total

$ 27,349 $ 10,979 $ -      $ 10,979

-      (33,942) -      (33,942)

45,916 (54,759) -      (54,759)

-      (21,107) -      (21,107)

8,959 285,769 -      285,769

-      (12,702) -      (12,702)

-      (39,332) -      (39,332)

$ 82,224 $ 134,906 $ -      $ 134,906

$ -      $ -      $ 82,253 $ 82,253

-      -      (9,644) (9,644)

-      -      (6,407) (6,407)

$ -      $ -      $ 66,202 $ 66,202

$ 82,224 $ 134,906 $ 66,202 $ 201,108

$ 249,477 $ -      $ 249,477

42,212 -      42,212

377 1,472 1,849

2,946 2,723 5,669

24,797 (24,797) -      

$ 319,809 $ (20,602) $ 299,207

$ 454,715 $ 45,600 $ 500,315

1,483,024 1,464,945 2,947,969

$ 1,937,739 $ 1,510,545 $ 3,448,284
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 3

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2020

Nonmajor Total

2006 Street Project 2019 Street Project Vergas EDA  Governmental

General Fund  Debt Service  Debt Service  Special Revenue Funds
Assets

  Cash and pooled investments $ 60,981 $ 58,612 $ 164,289 $ 1,370 $ 285,252
  Investments 103,488 9,921 -      -      113,409
  Taxes receivable
    Current 832 55 -      -      887
    Prior 6,064 411 -      -      6,475
  Special assessments receivable
    Current -      4 537 -      541
    Prior -      1,083 23,916 -      24,999
  Accounts receivable 34 -      -      -      34
  Due from other funds -      29,774 -      -      29,774
  Due from other governments 45,735 -      -      -      45,735
  Special assessments receivable - noncurrent -      45,818 518,264 -      564,082

      Total Assets $ 217,134 $ 145,678 $ 707,006 $ 1,370 $ 1,071,188

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 6,340 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 6,340
  Salaries payable 4,126 -      -      -      4,126
  Due to other funds 20,453 -      -      -      20,453
  Due to other governments 234 -      -      -      234

      Total Liabilities $ 31,153 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 31,153

Deferred Inflows of Resources
  Taxes $ 6,064 $ 411 $ -      $ -      $ 6,475
  Special assessments -      46,901 542,180 -      589,081

      Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 6,064 $ 47,312 $ 542,180 $ -      $ 595,556

Fund Balances
  Restricted for debt service $ -      $ 98,366 $ 164,826 $ -      $ 263,192
  Committed to
    City shop 3,040 -      -      -      3,040
    Easement 5,211 -      -      -      5,211
    Economic development -      -      -      1,370 1,370
    Event Center 27,422 -      -      -      27,422
    Parks 13,207 -      -      -      13,207
    Recreation programs 10,454 -      -      -      10,454
    Sand seal 23,845 -      -      -      23,845
    Sidewalk improvements 11,851 -      -      -      11,851
    Street improvements 8,458 -      -      -      8,458
  Unassigned 76,429 -      -      -      76,429

      Total Fund Balances $ 179,917 $ 98,366 $ 164,826 $ 1,370 $ 444,479

        Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
         Resources and Fund Balances $ 217,134 $ 145,678 $ 707,006 $ 1,370 $ 1,071,188

Page 74 of 161



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 18

CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 4

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO

THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION--GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

DECEMBER 31, 2020

Fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 3) $ 444,479

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

  Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities 

  are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 2,146,203

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures

  and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds. 595,556

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,

  therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences payable $ (979)

Capital equipment notes payable (35,125)

General obligation bonds payable (1,183,000)

Unamortized discount on bonds payable 19,042 (1,200,062)

Net pension asset, net pension liability and related inflows/outflows of resources

  represent the allocation of the pension obligations of the statewide plans to the City.

  Such balances are not reported in the governmental funds:

Net pension liability $ (55,637)

Deferred outflows related to pensions 10,261

Deferred inflows related to pensions (3,061) (48,437)

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 1) $ 1,937,739
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 5

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Nonmajor Total

2006 Street Project 2019 Street Project Vergas EDA Governmental

General Fund  Debt Service  Debt Service Special Revenue Funds

Revenues

  Property taxes $ 229,464 $ 16,039 $ -      $ -      $ 245,503

  Special assessments -      12,191 65,050 -      77,241

  Licenses and permits 26,266 -      -      -      26,266

  Intergovernmental 316,166 -      -      5,000 321,166

  Charges for services 676 -      -      -      676

  Gifts and contributions 15,574 -      -      -      15,574

  Investment earnings 236 141 -      -      377

  Miscellaneous 164,923 -      -      -      164,923

      Total Revenues $ 753,305 $ 28,371 $ 65,050 $ 5,000 $ 851,726

Expenditures

  Current

    General government $ 82,832 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 82,832

    Public safety 33,885 -      -      -      33,885

    Highways and streets 66,903 -      -      -      66,903

    Sanitation 11,834 -      -      -      11,834

    Culture and recreation 94,867 -      -      -      94,867

    Economic development -      -      -      12,702 12,702

      Total Current $ 290,321 $ -      $ -      $ 12,702 $ 303,023

  Debt service

    Principal retirement $ 17,562 $ 27,000 $ -      $ -      $ 44,562

    Interest -      5,106 33,274 -      38,380

      Total Debt service $ 17,562 $ 32,106 $ 33,274 $ -      $ 82,942

  Capital outlay

    General Government $ 55,346 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 55,346

    Highways and streets 26,664 -      -      -      26,664

    Culture and recreation 447,954 -      -      -      447,954

      Total Capital outlay $ 529,964 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 529,964

      Total Expenditures $ 837,847 $ 32,106 $ 33,274 $ 12,702 $ 915,929

  Excess of Revenues Over

   (Under) Expenditures $ (84,542) $ (3,735) $ 31,776 $ (7,702) $ (64,203)

  Other Financing Sources  (Uses)

    Transfers in $ 30,000 $ -      $ 126,621 $ 6,000 $ 162,621

    Transfers out (137,824) -      -      -      (137,824)

      Total Other Financing

       Sources (Uses) $ (107,824) $ -      $ 126,621 $ 6,000 $ 24,797

   Net Change in Fund Balance $ (192,366) $ (3,735) $ 158,397 $ (1,702) $ (39,406)

Fund Balance - January 1 372,283 102,101 6,429 3,072 483,885

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 179,917 $ 98,366 $ 164,826 $ 1,370 $ 444,479
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 6

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES--GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 5) $ (39,406)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

  Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in

  the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

  their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Purchase of capital assets $ 529,964

Current year depreciation (53,101) 476,863

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current

  financial resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.

Change in

Taxes receivable $ 3,974

Special assessments receivable (31,325) (27,351)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental

 funds, but increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position, while the 

 repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources

 of governmental funds.  Neither transaction has any effect on net position.

Principal repayment 44,562

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

    use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

    expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences payable $ (125)

Amortization of bond discount (952)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 3,245

Net pension liability (9,636)

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 7,515 47

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 2) $ 454,715
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 7

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2020

Liquor Sewer Water

Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Total

Assets

Current Assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ 54,299 $ -      $ 9,549 $ 63,848
  Investments 71,077 48,893 14,824 134,794
  Special assessments receivable
    Current -      187 188 375
    Prior -      5 5 10
  Accounts receivable -      1,873 3,346 5,219
  Due from other funds -      -      73,439 73,439
  Inventory 238,667 -      -      238,667

        Total Current Assets $ 364,043 $ 50,958 $ 101,351 $ 516,352

Noncurrent Assets
  Special assessments receivable - noncurrent $ -      $ 12,063 $ 12,064 $ 24,127
  Capital assets
    Depreciable - net of accumulated depreciation 365,422 266,001 654,084 1,285,507

        Total Noncurrent Assets $ 365,422 $ 278,064 $ 666,148 $ 1,309,634

      Total Assets $ 729,465 $ 329,022 $ 767,499 $ 1,825,986

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to pensions $ 9,299 $ 6,094 $ 6,413 $ 21,806

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 719 $ 17,528 $ 19,557 $ 37,804
  Salaries payable 1,633 1,473 1,473 4,579
  Compensated absences payable -      513 606 1,119
  Due to other funds -      77,996 4,764 82,760
  Due to other governments 5,023 47 101 5,171
  Water and sewer revenue bonds payable -      24,000 16,000 40,000

        Total Current Liabilities $ 7,375 $ 121,557 $ 42,501 $ 171,433

Noncurrent Liabilities
  Compensated absences payable $ -      $ 979 $ 1,049 $ 2,028
  Net pension liability 50,422 33,035 34,774 118,231
  Water and sewer revenue bonds payable -      26,430 12,620 39,050

        Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 50,422 $ 60,444 $ 48,443 $ 159,309

        Total Liabilities $ 57,797 $ 182,001 $ 90,944 $ 330,742

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to pensions $ 2,774 $ 1,818 $ 1,913 $ 6,505

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets $ 365,422 $ 215,001 $ 625,085 $ 1,205,508
Unrestricted amounts 312,771 (63,704) 55,970 305,037

    Total Net Position $ 678,193 $ 151,297 $ 681,055 $ 1,510,545

Page 78 of 161



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 22

CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 8

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Liquor Sewer Water

Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Total

Sales and Cost of Goods Sold

  Sales $ 736,331 $ -      $ -      $ 736,331

  Cost of goods sold (532,594) -      -      (532,594)

      Gross Profit $ 203,737 $ -      $ -      $ 203,737

Operating Revenues

  Charges for services -      92,434 103,695 196,129

      Total Gross Profit and Operating Revenues $ 203,737 $ 92,434 $ 103,695 $ 399,866

Operating Expenses

  Personnel services $ 54,343 $ 58,907 $ 59,205 $ 172,455

  Professional services 4,175 906 1,167 6,248

  Advertising 7,323 -      -      7,323

  Insurance 6,330 1,375 1,118 8,823

  Repairs and maintenance 6,271 18,103 953 25,327

  Supplies 16,083 3,349 7,691 27,123

  Utilities 8,827 7,648 5,495 21,970

  Miscellaneous 2,987 1,762 3,694 8,443

  Depreciation 15,145 7,417 29,409 51,971

      Total Operating Expenses $ 121,484 $ 99,467 $ 108,732 $ 329,683

  Operating Income (Loss) $ 82,253 $ (7,033) $ (5,037) $ 70,183

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Special assessments $ -      $ 1,106 $ 1,108 $ 2,214

  Investment earnings 511 741 220 1,472

  Interest expense -      (3,717) (2,478) (6,195)

  Miscellaneous 1,931 86 706 2,723

      Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $ 2,442 $ (1,784) $ (444) $ 214

             Income (Loss) Before Transfers $ 84,695 $ (8,817) $ (5,481) $ 70,397

  Transfers in 5,203 -      -      5,203

  Transfers out (30,000) -      -      (30,000)

             Change in Net Position $ 59,898 $ (8,817) $ (5,481) $ 45,600

Net Position - January 1 618,295 160,114 686,536 1,464,945

Net Position - December 31 $ 678,193 $ 151,297 $ 681,055 $ 1,510,545
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 9

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Liquor Sewer Water

Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

  Receipts from customers $ 807,477 $ 92,326 $ 103,775 $ 1,003,578

  Payments to employees (54,651) (59,139) (58,831) (172,621)

  Payments to suppliers (679,733) (33,676) (21,538) (734,947)

    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 73,093 $ (489) $ 23,406 $ 96,010

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

  Special assessments received $ - $ 5,505 $ 5,505 $ 11,010

  Miscellaneous 1,800 -      -      1,800

  Transfers from other funds - 73,439 39,734 113,173

  Transfers to other funds (30,000) (39,734) (73,439) (143,173)

    Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital

      financing activities $ (28,200) $ 39,210 $ (28,200) $ (17,190)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

  Purchase of capital assets $ (28,081) $ (10,754) $ (17,282) $ (56,117)

  Principal paid on bonds - (24,000) (16,000) (40,000)

  Interest paid on bonds - (3,432) (2,288) (5,720)

    Net cash provided by (used in) capital

      and related financing activities $ (28,081) $ (38,186) $ (35,570) $ (101,837)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

  Investment earnings received $ 511 $ 206 $ 68 $ 785

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 17,323 $ 741 $ (40,296) $ (22,232)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1 108,053 48,152 64,669 220,874

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ 125,376 $ 48,893 $ 24,373 $ 198,642

Page 80 of 161



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 24

CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 9
 (Continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Liquor  Sewer  Water

Enterprise  Enterprise  Enterprise Total

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to

  net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

    Operating income (loss) $ 82,253 $ (7,033) $ (5,037) $ 70,183

    Adjustments to reconcile net operating income (loss)

      to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

        Depreciation expense $ 15,145 $ 7,417 $ 29,409 $ 51,971

        (Increase)  decrease in assets

          Accounts receivable -      (108) (812) (920)

          Inventory (17,678) -      -      (17,678)

        Increase (decrease) in liabilities

          Accounts payable (7,378) (756) (548) (8,682)

          Salaries payable 580 159 159 898

          Compensated absences payable -      190 211 401

          Due to other governments 1,059 47 20 1,126

          Net pension liability (888) (405) 4 (1,289)

        Total adjustments $ (9,160) $ 6,544 $ 28,443 $ 25,827

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 73,093 $ (489) $ 23,406 $ 96,010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 
I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP), except as described in the basis for qualified opinion on page 3. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local 
governments through its pronouncements (statements and interpretations).  The more significant accounting 
policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below. 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 

 
The Charter of the City of Vergas was adopted on November 10, 1903, and has the powers, duties, and 
privileges granted by state law, codified in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 412.  The City operates under a 
Mayor-Council form of government and provides services such as general government, public safety, 
highways and streets, sanitation, culture and recreation, economic development, municipal liquor store, and 
sewer and water utilities as authorized by its charter. 
 
The Vergas Fire Relief Association is organized to provide pension and other benefits to its members in 
accordance with Minnesota statutes.  The Relief Association is a defined benefit plan type, and is required 
by GASB Pronouncement No. 68 to be included in the financial statements of the City. 

 
Blended Component Unit 
 
The Vergas Economic Development Authority was created in 2015 and is reported as a nonmajor Special 
Revenue Fund within the City’s financial statements.  The Authority’s Board of Directors includes two 
members of the Vergas City Council, with the City Clerk/Treasurer also serving as Secretary/Treasurer of 
the EDA. The Authority has no capital assets or debt. The Authority does not issue separate financial 
statements.  
 

B. Basic Financial Statements 
 

1. Government-Wide Statements 
  

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) include the financial activities of the overall City government.  Eliminations have been made 
to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external parties for support. 

 
In the government-wide statement of net position, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns: (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column; and (b) are reported on a full accrual, 
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term 
debt and obligations.  The City’s net position is reported in three parts: (1) net investment in capital 
assets; (2) restricted net position; and (3) unrestricted net position.  The City first utilizes restricted 
resources to finance qualifying activities. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of each function of the 
City’s governmental activities and different business-type activities are offset by program revenues.  
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or activity.  Program  
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

B. Basic Financial Statements  
 

1. Government-Wide Statements (Continued) 
 

revenues include: (1) fees, charges, and other revenues paid by the recipients of goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or activity; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted  
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or activity.  Revenues that are 
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues and transfers. 

 
2.  Fund Financial Statements 

 
The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds.  Separate statements for each 
fund category–governmental and proprietary–are presented. The emphasis of governmental and 
proprietary fund financial statements is on major individual governmental and enterprise funds, with 
each displayed as separate columns in the fund financial statements.   
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values.  Nonoperating revenues, such as property taxes, grants, 
donations, subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or incidental 
activities. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for and reports all financial 
resources of the general government not accounted for in another fund. 
 
The 2006 Street Project Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report the collection of special 
assessments restricted for debt service.  
 
The 2019 Street Project Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report the collection of special 
assessments restricted for debt service.  

 
Additionally, the City reports the Vergas Economic Development Authority Special Revenue Fund 
as a non-major fund. 

 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 

The Liquor Store Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations of the liquor store.  Financing 
is provided through the liquor store’s sale of off-sale liquor. 

 
The Sewer Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations of the sewer utility.  Financing is 
provided by charges to residents for services.   

 
The Water Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations of the water utility.  Financing is 
provided by charges to residents for services.   
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  The City considers tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 
days after the end of the current period.  Intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, and interest are 
all considered to be susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, compensated absences, and claims and 
judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they have matured.  Proceeds of general 
long-term debt are reported as other financing sources. 

 
As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements.   

 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity 

 
 1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand and demand deposits.  
Additionally, each fund’s equity in the City’s deposits is treated as a cash equivalent because the funds 
can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. 

 
2.  Deposits and Investments 
 

The cash balances of the funds are invested by the City Clerk-Treasurer for the purpose of increasing 
earnings through investment activities.  Pooled and fund investments are reported at their fair value at 
December 31, 2020, based on market prices.  Investment earnings on cash and pooled investments are 
allocated to the funds with deposits.  Total investment earnings for 2020 were $5,669. 

 
3.  Receivables and Payables 

 
Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the same date.  The tax levy 
notice is mailed by Otter Tail County in March with the first half payment due on May 15 and the 
second half due on October 15.   

 
Taxes and special assessments receivable consist of uncollected taxes and special assessments payable 
in the years 2007 through 2020 and noncurrent special assessments collectible in 2021 and beyond.  
Taxes receivable are offset by deferred inflows of resources for the amount not collected within 60 days 
of December 31 to indicate they are not available to finance current expenditures.  No provision has 
been made for an estimated uncollectible amount. 
 
 

 

Page 84 of 161



CITY OF VERGAS 
VERGAS, MINNESOTA 

 
 

Page 28  

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity  
 

3. Receivables and Payables (Continued) 
 
Accounts receivable consist primarily of charges for services for sewer and water. 

 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or “advances from/to other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). 

  
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”  Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in 
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 
 
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts, if applicable. 

 
4. Inventory 
 

All inventories are valued at cost using the First-In, First-Out (FIFO) method.  Inventories in the 
proprietary funds are recorded as expenses when consumed.   

 
5. Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, infrastructure (e.g., sewers and water 
mains), buildings and improvements, and machinery and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital 
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and 
an estimated useful life in excess of two years, except land which is capitalized regardless of cost.   
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost when purchased or constructed.  
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of acquisition. 

 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extended the life of the asset are not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed.   

 
Infrastructure, buildings and improvements, and machinery and equipment are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets  Years 
   
Infrastructure  30-50 
Buildings and improvements  20-30 
Machinery and equipment  5-10 
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 
 

 
6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This element represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods, and 
therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time. The City reports 
deferred outflows of resources in the government-wide and proprietary funds Statement of Net Position 
in relation to the activity of the pension funds in which City employees participate.  

 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This element represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that 
applies to future periods, and therefore, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time. The City reports special assessments levied for subsequent years and delinquent property tax 
and special assessments receivable as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds, in 
accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting. In addition, the City reports deferred inflows 
of resources in the government-wide and proprietary funds Statement of Net Position in relation to the 
activity of the pension funds in which City employees participate. Accordingly, such amounts are 
deferred and recognized as inflows of resources in the period that they become available. 

 
7. Compensated Absences 

 
The liability for compensated absences reported in financial statements consists of unpaid, accumulated 
annual vacation and sick leave balances.  The liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in 
which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments 
and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon 
termination are included.  Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide 
and proprietary fund financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental 
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  A 
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, 
as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  Compensated absences are generally liquidated 
by the General Fund, Liquor Fund, and the Sewer and Water Enterprise Funds. 

 
8. Long-Term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental and business-type activities.  Bond 
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest 
method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance 
costs are immediately expensed.  In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize 
the face amount of the debt is reported as other financing sources when issued.   

 
9. Pensions 

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association 
(PERA) and additions to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by PERA except that PERA’s fiscal year end is June 30.  For this  
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity  

 
9. Pensions (Continued) 

 
purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are 
reported at fair value.  For the governmental activities, the pension liability is liquidated by the General 
Fund.  For the business type activities, the pension liability is liquidated by the Liquor, Sewer, and 
Water Enterprise Funds. 

 
10. Net Position and Fund Balance 
 

Net position in the government-wide statements is classified in the following categories: 
 

Net investment in capital assets – represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and 
reduced by outstanding debt attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the 
assets. 

 
Restricted net position – the amount of net position for which external restrictions have been 
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and 
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
Unrestricted net position – the amount of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted 
or net investment of capital assets. 

 
In the fund financial statements, the City classifies governmental fund balances as follows: 

 
Non-spendable – includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent because it is either not in 
spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  The City of Vergas 
has no non-spendable fund balance as of December 31, 2020. 
 
Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are 
either externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.   

 
Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes imposed by 
resolution of the City Council and do not lapse at year-end.  To remove the constraint on specified 
use of committed resources the City Council shall pass a resolution. 

 
Assigned – includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that 
are neither restricted nor committed.  The City Council has delegated the authority to assign and 
remove assignments of fund balance amounts for specified purposes to the City Clerk-Treasurer.  
The City of Vergas has no assigned fund balance as of December 31, 2020. 

 
Unassigned – includes positive fund balance within the General Fund, which has not been 
classified within the above-mentioned categories, and negative fund balances in other 
governmental funds.  
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity  

 
 10. Net Position and Fund Balance (Continued) 

 
The City will maintain an unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund of an amount not less than 35 
to 50 percent of next year’s budgeted expenditures of the General Fund.  Unrestricted fund balance can 
be “spent down” if there is an anticipated budget shortfall.  If spending unrestricted fund balance in 
designated circumstances has reduced unrestricted fund balance to a point below the minimum targeted 
level, as noted above, the replenishment will be funded by taxes. 
 
Stabilization arrangements are defined as formally setting aside amounts for use in emergency situations 
or when revenue shortages or budgetary imbalances arise.  The City Council will set aside amounts by 
resolution as deemed necessary that can only be expended when an emergency situation, revenue 
shortages, or budgetary imbalances exist as the need for stabilization arises.  The need for stabilization 
will only be utilized for situations that are not expected to occur routinely. The City does not identify 
an amount for stabilization as of December 31, 2020. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  When committed, assigned or 
unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use resources in the following order:  
1) committed, 2) assigned, and 3) unassigned. 

 
11. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and disclosure of 
contingent amounts at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds 
 
 A. Assets 
 
  1. Deposits and Investments 
 

Reconciliations of the City’s total deposits and investments to the basic financial statements, as of 
December 31, 2020, are as follows: 

 
Government-wide Statement of Net Position
 Governmental Activities
   Cash and pooled investments 285,252$          
   Investments 113,409            
 Business-type Activities
   Cash and pooled investments 63,848              
   Investments 134,794            

     Total Cash and Investments 597,303$          

Checking accounts 349,099$          
Savings accounts 174,565            
Certificates of deposit 73,639              

  Total Deposits 597,303$          

 
Deposits  
 
Minnesota Statutes, §§ 118A.02 and 118A.04 authorize the City to deposit its cash and to invest in 
certificates of deposit in financial institutions designated by the Board.  Minnesota Statute, § 118A.03 
requires that all City deposits be covered by insurance, surety bond, or collateral.  The market value of 
collateral pledged shall be at least ten percent more than the amount on deposit plus accrued interest at 
the close of the financial institution’s banking day, not covered by insurance or bonds. 

 
Authorized collateral includes treasury bills, notes, and bonds; issues of U.S. government agencies; 
general obligations rated “A” or better, revenue obligations rated “AA” or better; irrevocable standard 
letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank; and certificates of deposit.  Minnesota statutes 
require that securities pledged as collateral be held in safekeeping in a restricted account at the Federal 
Reserve Bank or in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution 
not owned or controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk 

 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the City’s deposits may 
not be returned to it.  It is the City’s policy to comply with Minnesota statutes in establishing authorized 
collateral for deposits.  As of December 31, 2020, the City’s deposits were not exposed to custodial 
credit risk. 
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds 
 
 A. Assets (Continued) 
 

2. Receivables 
 

Receivables as of December 31, 2020, for the City’s governmental and business-type activities, are as 
follows: 

Amounts Not
Scheduled for

Collection During
Total Receivables the Subsequent Year

Governmental Activities
 Taxes 7,362$                       -$                              
 Special Assessments 589,622                     564,082                     
 Accounts 34                              -                                
 Due from other governments 45,735                       -                                

     Total Governmental Activities 642,753$                   564,082$                   

Business-Type Activities
 Special assessments 24,602$                     24,127$                     
 Accounts 5,219                         -                                

     Total Business-Type Activities 29,821$                     24,127$                     

 
3. Capital Assets  

 
Capital asset activity for the governmental and business-type activities for the year ended December 31, 
2020, was as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated
 Land 94,238$          -$                    -$                    94,238$          
 Construction in progress -                      55,346            -                      55,346            

     Total capital assets not depreciated 94,238$          55,346$          -$                    149,584$        

Capital assets being depreciated
 Infrastructure 1,579,981$     462,618$        -$                    2,042,599$     
 Buildings and improvements 87,026            -                      -                      87,026            
 Machinery and equipment 242,284          12,000            -                      254,284          

     Total capital assets being depreciated 1,909,291$     474,618$        -$                    2,383,909$     

Less: accumulated depreciation for
 Infrastructure 167,696$        31,602$          -$                    199,298$        
 Buildings and improvements 44,024            2,960              -                      46,984            
 Machinery and equipment 122,469          18,539            -                      141,008          

     Total accumulated depreciation 334,189$        53,101$          -$                    387,290$        

     Total capital assets, depreciated, net 1,575,102$     421,517$        -$                    1,996,619$     

     Governmental Activities
      Capital Assets, Net 1,669,340$     476,863$        -$                    2,146,203$     
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds 
 
 A. Assets  

 
3. Capital Assets (Continued) 

 
Business-Type Activities

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets being depreciated
 Infrastructure 1,662,580$     64,275$          -$                    1,726,855$     
 Buildings and improvements 494,724          -                      -                      494,724          
 Machinery and equipment 57,874            33,284            -                      91,158            

     Total capital assets being depreciated 2,215,178$     97,559$          -$                    2,312,737$     

Less: accumulated depreciation for
 Infrastructure 772,356$        36,584$          -$                    808,940$        
 Buildings and improvements 145,029          15,387            -                      160,416          
 Machinery and equipment 57,874            -                      -                      57,874            

     Total accumulated depreciation 975,259$        51,971$          -$                    1,027,230$     

     Business-Type Activities
      Capital Assets, Net 1,239,919$     45,588$          -$                    1,285,507$     

 
 
Depreciation Expense 

 
   Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the City as follows: 
 

Governmental Activites
 General government 1,882$                 
 Public safety 957                      
 Highways and streets 33,752                 
 Sanitation 9,273                   
 Culture and recreation 7,237                   

     Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 53,101$               

Business-Type Activities
 Liquor 15,145$               
 Sewer 7,417                   
 Water 29,409                 

     Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities 51,971$               
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

B. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 
 

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2020, is as follows: 
 

 Due To/From Other Funds 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

2006 Street Service  Debt Service Fund General Fund 20,453$         Posting errors for taxes in 2017-2020

Sewer Enterprise Fund 4,557             Posting errors for taxes in 2017-2020

Water Enterprise Fund 4,764             Posting errors for taxes in 2017-2020

    Total Due To 2006 Street Debt Service Fund: 29,774$         

Water Enterprise Fund Sewer Enterprise Fund 73,439           To cover cash deficit

     Total Due To /Due From Other Funds: 103,213$       

 
Interfund Transfers 
 
Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2020, consisted of the following operating transfer: 

 
Transfer to General Fund
 from Liquor Enterprise Fund 30,000$           Appropriation

Transfer to 2006 Street Project Debt Service Fund Transfer unused
 from General Fund 126,621            bond proceeds

Transfer to Liquor Enterprise Fund For portion of
 from General Fund 5,203                sign purchase

Transfer to Vergas EDA Special Revenue Fund
 from General Fund 6,000               Appropriation

   Total Interfund Transfers: 167,824$         
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

C. Liabilities 
 

Compensated Absences 
 
Under the City’s personnel policies, employees are granted paid time off (PTO) in varying amounts based 
on their length of service.  PTO accrual varies from 15 to 25 days per year with a maximum accrual limit of 
25 days.  Accrued PTO will be paid to employees leaving in good standing upon resignation or retirement. 

 
Long-Term Debt 
 
Governmental Activities 

 
The City of Vergas General Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2015 represent debt incurred to 
refund General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2006. These bonds have an original issue amount of 
$299,000.  They carry a net interest rate of 2.4158 percent and are due in annual installments from the 2006 
Street Debt Service Fund of between $27,000 and $33,000 and mature in 2027. As a result of the refunding, 
the City realized an economic gain of $32,189 with a present value of $25,352.  The balance due on 
December 31, 2020 is $198,000. 
 
The City of Vergas Capital Equipment Notes of 2017 represent debt incurred for the purchase of a loader.  
These notes have an original issue amount of $140,500, carry an interest rate of 0 percent, are due in semi-
annual installments paid from the General Fund of $35,125 through June of 2021.  The balance due on 
December 31, 2020 is $35,125. 
 
The City of Vergas General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2019A, represent debt incurred to finance 
various street improvement projects throughout the City.  These bonds have an original issue amount of 
$985,000, carry an interest rate of 3.2644 percent, and are due in semi-annual installments paid from the 
2019 Street Project Debt Service Fund of $40,000 to $65,000 through February 1, 2040.  The balance due 
on these bonds at December 31, 2020, is $965,958, net of unamortized bond discount of $19,042. 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
The City of Vergas General Obligation Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 represent 
debt incurred to refund General Obligation Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds of 1994 and General Obligation 
Sewer Revenue Bonds of 2000.  These bonds have an original issue amount of $475,000.  They carry a net 
interest rate of 4.0857 percent and are due in annual installments from the Water and Sewer Funds of between 
$16,000 and $27,000 and mature in 2022.  As a result of the refunding, the City realized an economic gain 
of $83,630 with a present value of $16,793.  The balance due on December 31, 2020 is $79,050, net of 
unamortized bond discount of $950. 
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds  
 

C. Liabilities  
 
Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

 
Debt Service Requirements 
 
Debt service requirements for the governmental and the business-type activities at December 31, 2020, are 
as follows: 

Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2021 27,000$          4,593$            40,000            28,322                  35,125$          -$                 
2022 26,000            4,089              40,000            27,402                  -                      -                   
2023 25,000            3,511              40,000            26,482                  -                      -                   
2024 30,000            2,783              40,000            25,532                  -                      -                   
2025 29,000            2,001              40,000            24,552                  -                      -                   

2026-2027 61,000            1,683              225,000          105,262                -                      -                   
2028-2035 -                      -                      260,000          70,472                  -                      -                   
2036-2040 -                      -                      300,000          25,843                  -                      -                   

Subtotal: 198,000$        18,660$          985,000$        333,867$              35,125$          -$                 

           Less bond discount -                      -                      (19,042)           -                            -                      -                   

        Total: 198,000$        18,660$          965,958$        333,867$              35,125$          -$                 

General Obligation 
Street Improvement Bonds, 2019A

Governmental Activities
Capital Equipment

 Notes of 2017
General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds of 2015

 
 

Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest

2021 40,000$          3,480$            
2022 40,000            1,740              

80,000$          5,220$            

Less:  Bond discount (950)                -                      

Total 79,050$          5,220$            

Business-Type Activities

Water and Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2009

General Obligation 
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III. Detailed Notes on All Funds  
 

C. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as 
follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Capital Equipment Notes
 of 2017 52,687$            -$                 17,562$       35,125$           35,125$       

General Obligation Refunding 
 Bonds of 2015 225,000            -                   27,000         198,000           27,000         

General Obligation Improvement
 Bonds, Series 2019A 985,000            -                   -                   985,000           40,000         

  Less:  Bond discount (19,994)             -                   (952)             (19,042)            -                   

Compensated Absences 854                   2,170           2,045           979                  291              

Net Pension Liability 45,999              9,638           -                   55,637             -                   

    Governmental Activities
     Long-Term Liabilities 1,289,546$       11,808$       45,655$       1,255,699$      102,416$     

 
Business-Type Activities 

 
 Long-term liability activity for the business-type activities for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as 
follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

General Obligation Water and Sewer
 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 120,000$     -$                 40,000$       80,000$       40,000$       

Less:  Bond discount (1,425)          -                   (950)             (475)             -                   

Compensated Absences 2,746           5,254           4,853           3,147           1,119           

Net Pension Liability 97,749         20,482         -                   118,231       -                   

    Business-Type Activities
     Long-Term Liabilities 219,070$     5,254$         43,903$       200,903$     41,119$       
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III. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

D. Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 

Deferred inflows of resources consist of taxes and special assessments, not collected soon enough after year-
end to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred inflows of resources at December 31, 2020, are 
summarized below by fund: 

Special
Taxes Assessments Total

Major governmental funds
  General 832$               -$                    832$               
Debt Service Fund
  2006 Street Improvements 55                   46,773            46,828            
  2019 Street Improvements -                      518,264          518,264          

    Total 887$               565,037$        565,924$        

 
IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plan  
 

A. Plan Description  
 

The City of Vergas participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). PERA’s defined 
benefit pension plans are established and administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 
and 356. PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  
 
General Employees Retirement Plan  

 
The General Employees Retirement Plan covers certain full time and part-time employees of City of Vergas. 
General Employees Plan members belong to the Coordinated Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered 
by Social Security. 
 

 B. Benefits Provided 
 

PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state statue 
and can only be modified by the state Legislature. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits, 
but are not receiving them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their 
public service.  

 
General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive 
years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are used to 
compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated Plan members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive the 
higher of Method 1 or Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after June 30, 1989. 
Under Method 1, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.2 percent for each of the first 10 years of 
service and 1.7 percent for each additional year. Under Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated members 
is 1.7 percent for all years of service.  For members hired prior to July 1, 1989 a full annuity is available 
when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after July 
1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66.   
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plan  

 
 B. Benefits Provided 
 

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January.  The postretirement increase is equal to 50 
percent of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) announced by the SSA, with a minimum increase of at least 
1 percent and a maximum of 1.5 percent. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at 
least a full year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full increase. 
Recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full year as of the June 30 
before the effective date of the increase will receive a reduced prorated increase. For members retiring on 
January 1, 2024, or later, the increase will be delayed until normal retirement age (age 65 if hired prior to 
July 1, 1989, or age 66 for individuals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members retiring under Rule of 90 are 
exempt from the delay to normal retirement. 

 
C. Contributions 

 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution rates 
can only be modified by the state Legislature.  

 
Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual covered salary in fiscal 
year 2020 and the City of Vergas was required to contribute 7.50 percent for Coordinated Plan members. 
The City of Vergas’s contributions to the General Employees Fund for the year ended December 31, 2020, 
were $16,498. The City of Vergas’s contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state 
statute. 

 
D. Pension Costs 

  
At December 31, 2020, the City of Vergas reported a liability of $173,868 for its proportionate share of the 
General Employees Fund’s net pension liability. The City of Vergas’s net pension liability reflected a 
reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million. The State of Minnesota is considered 
a non-employer contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding 
situation. The State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City 
of Vergas totaled $5,201. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The City of Vergas’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City of Vergas’s 
contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 
1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of PERA’s 
participating employers. The City of Vergas’s proportionate share was .0029 percent at the end of the 
measurement period and .0026 percent for the beginning of the period. 
 

City of Vergas
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 53,959$           

State of Minnesota's proportionate share of 
 the net pension liability associated with
  the City of Vergas 5,201               

Total 59,160$           
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There were no provision changes during the measurement period. 
IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plan  
 

D. Pension Costs (Continued) 
 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City of Vergas recognized pension expense of $19,587 for its 
proportionate share of the General Employees Plan’s pension expense.  In addition, the City of Vergas 
recognized $453 as grant revenue for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s pension expense for 
the annual $16 million contribution.   

 
At December 31, 2020, the City of Vergas reported its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan’s 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources:  
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 1,423$                     658$                     

Changes in actuarial assumptions -                               6,134                    

Net collective difference between projected and actual
 investment earnings 4,742                       -                            

Changes in proportion 17,228                     2,774                    

Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to the measurement date 8,674                       -                            

      Total 32,067$                   9,566$                  

 
The $8,674 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City of Vergas 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended Pension Expense
December 31: Amount:

2021 (611)$                    
2022 2,814$                   
2023 7,424$                   
2024 4,200$                   
2025 -$                          

 
 There were no provision changes during the measurement period. 
 
E. Total Pension Expense 
 

The total pension expense for General Employees Plan recognized by the City of Vergas for the year ended 
December 31, 2020 was $20,040. 
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 

F. Actuarial Assumptions 
 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using an individual 
entry-age normal actuarial cost method and the following actuarial assumptions:  
 
   Inflation       2.25% per year 
   Active Member Payroll Growth  3.00% per year 

    Investment Rate of Return   7.50% 
 

Salary increases were based on a service-related table.  Mortality rates for active members, retirees, 
survivors, and disabilitants were based on Pub-2010 General Employee Mortality table for the General 
Employees Plan for males or females, as appropriate, with slight adjustments to fit PERA’s experience.   

 
Cost of living benefit increases after retirement for retirees are assumed to be 1.25 percent per year for the 
General Employees Plan.  

 
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience 
studies. The most recent four-year experience study for the General Employees Plan was completed in 2019.  
The assumption changes were adopted by the Board and became effective with the July 1, 2020 actuarial 
valuation.   
 

  The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions occurred in 2020: 
 

General Employees Fund 
 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
 

• The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%.  
• The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%.  
• Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The 

net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25% less than previous rates. 
• Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The 

changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer Rule of 90 and early retirements.  
• Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The 

new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the previous rates for years 2-5 and slightly 
higher thereafter.  

• Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The 
change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and females.  

• The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014 table to the 
Pub-2010 General Mortality table, with adjustments. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was 
changed from the RP-2014 disabled annuitant mortality table to the PUB-2010 General/Teacher disabled 
annuitant mortality table, with adjustments.  

• The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019.  
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

 
F. Actuarial Assumptions  

 
General Employees Fund 
 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

 
• The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year older. 
• The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option changed 

from 35% to 45%. The assumed number of married female new retirees electing the 100% Joint & 
Survivor option changed from 15% to 30%. The corresponding number of married new retirees electing 
the Life annuity option was adjusted accordingly. 
 

Changes in Plan Provisions 
 

• Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the period July 1, 2020 through 
December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was eliminated for privatizations occurring after June 
30, 2020. 

 
The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the 
reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real 
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return

Domestic Equity 35.5% 5.10%
International Stocks 17.5% 5.30%
Bonds (Fixed Income) 20.0% 0.75%
Alternative Assets (Private Markets) 25.0% 5.90%
Cash 2.0% 0.00%

    Total 100.0%

 
 F. Discount Rate  
 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2020 was 7.50 percent. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will 
be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net positions of the 
General Employees Fund, the Police and Fire Fund, and the Correctional Fund were projected to be available 
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plan  (Continued) 
 

G. Pension Liability Sensitivity 
 

The following presents the City of Vergas’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it 
participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the 
City of Vergas’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:  

 

1% Lower 6.50% 278,681$    
Current Discount Rate 7.50% 173,868$    
1% Higher 8.50% 87,431$      

General Employees Fund

Sensitivity Analysis 
Net Pension Liability (Asset) at Different Discount 

Discount Rates

 
H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued 
PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That 
report may be obtained on the internet at www.mnpera.org . 
 

V. Public Employees Defined Contribution Plan (Defined Contribution Plan) 
 

Three employees of the City of Vergas are covered by the Defined Contribution Plan, a multiple-employer 
deferred compensation plan administered by PERA. The Defined Contribution Plan is a tax qualified plan under 
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and all contributions by or on behalf of employees are tax deferred 
until time of withdrawal. 
 
Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings, less administrative 
expenses. Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D.03, specifies plan provisions, including the employee and employer 
contribution rates for those qualified personnel who elect to participate. An eligible elected official who decides 
to participate contributes five percent of salary which is matched by the elected official's employer. For ambulance 
service personnel, employer contributions are determined by the employer, and for salaried employees 
contributions must be a fixed percentage of salary. Employer contributions for volunteer personnel may be a unit 
value for each call or period of alert duty. Employees who are paid for their services may elect to make member 
contributions in an amount not to exceed the employer share. Employer and employee contributions are combined 
and used to purchase shares in one or more of the seven accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment 
Fund. For administering the plan, PERA receives two percent of employer contributions and twenty-five 
hundredths of one percent (0.25 percent) of the assets in each member's account annually. 
 
Total contributions made by the City of Vergas during fiscal year 2020 were: 
 

Required
Employee Employer Employee Employer Rate

310$                           310$                           5% 5% 5%

Contribution Amount Percentage of Covered Payroll
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VI. Summary of Significant Contingencies and Other Items 

 
A. Claims and Litigation 

 
The City, in connection with the normal conduct of its affairs, may be involved in various claims, judgments, 
and litigation.  The City Council estimates that the potential claims against the City not covered by insurance 
resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the financial statements of the City. 

 
 B. Risk Management 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage, or destruction of assets; errors 
or omissions; injuries to employees; employee health coverage; or natural disasters.  The City has entered 
into a joint powers agreement with other Minnesota cities to form the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance 
Trust (LMCIT) to cover workers’ compensation and property and casualty liabilities.  There were no 
significant reductions in insurance from the prior year.  The amount of settlements did not exceed insurance 
coverage for each of the past three fiscal years. 

 
The League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust is a public entity risk pool currently operated as a common 
risk management and insurance program for its members.  The City pays an annual premium based on its 
annual payroll and an experience modification factor for workers’ compensation coverage.  

 
 C. Conduit Debt 
 

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. §462C, as amended (the “Housing Act”), and Minn. Stat. Sec. §471.656, as 
amended (the “Industrial Development Act”), the City issued revenue bonds to provide financial refinancing 
assistance to CDL Homes, Inc. a Minnesota nonprofit corporation which owns and operates nursing home 
and skilled care facilities in Minnesota.  The bonds are secured by the property financed through a series of 
loan agreements and are payable solely from the revenues of CDL Homes, Inc. The City is not obligated in 
any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the financial 
statements.  As of December 31, 2020, the balance due on these bonds is $9,005,000.  
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

Schedule 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Property taxes $ 228,179 $ 228,179 $ 229,464 $ 1,285
  Licenses and permits 27,880 27,880 26,266 (1,614)
  Intergovernmental 48,450 48,450 316,166 267,716
  Charges for services 28,000 28,000 676 (27,324)
  Gifts and contributions 5,000 5,000 15,574 10,574
  Investment earnings 150 150 236 86
  Miscellaneous 29,000 29,000 164,923 135,923

      Total Revenues $ 366,659 $ 366,659 $ 753,305 $ 386,646

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Mayor/council $ 8,930 $ 8,930 $ 6,436 $ 2,494
      City clerk/treasurer 39,850 39,850 28,616 11,234
      Administration 22,850 22,850 24,573 (1,723)
      Elections -      -      2,447 (2,447)
      Legal 9,000 9,000 8,222 778
      Cemetery 250 250 225 25
      Insurance -      -      2,632 (2,632)
      Other general government -      -      9,681 (9,681)

  Total general government $ 80,880 $ 80,880 $ 82,832 $ (1,952)

    Public safety
      Fire $ 23,400 $ 23,400 $ 19,076 $ 4,324
      Fire relief association -      -      14,809 (14,809)

  Total public safety $ 23,400 $ 23,400 $ 33,885 $ (10,485)

    Highways and streets
      Street department $ 94,620 $ 94,620 $ 52,707 $ 41,913
      Snow and ice removal 3,700 3,700 194 3,506
      Street lighting 8,000 8,000 7,253 747
      Shop 7,500 7,500 6,749 751

  Total highways and streets $ 113,820 $ 113,820 $ 66,903 $ 46,917

    Sanitation
      Recycling center $ 7,515 $ 7,515 $ 11,834 $ (4,319)
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Schedule 1
(Continued)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures 
  Current (continued)
    Culture and recreation
      Parks $ 59,399 $ 59,399 $ 72,243 $ (12,844)
      Community center 37,625 37,625 20,270 17,355
      Trails -      -      2,354 (2,354)
      Recreational programs 6,000 6,000 -      6,000

  Total culture and recreation $ 103,024 $ 103,024 $ 94,867 $ 8,157

  Debt service
    Principal retirement $ -      $ -      $ 17,562 $ (17,562)

  Capital outlay
    General government $ -      $ -      $ 55,346 $ (55,346)
    Highways and streets 17,000 17,000 26,664 (9,664)
    Culture and recreation 15,000 15,000 447,954 (432,954)

  Total capital outlay $ 32,000 $ 32,000 $ 529,964 $ (497,964)

    Total Expenditures $ 360,639 $ 360,639 $ 837,847 $ (477,208)

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 6,020 $ 6,020 $ (84,542) $ (90,562)

Other Financing Sources  (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 30,000 $ 15,000
  Transfers out -      -      (137,824) (137,824)

   Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ (107,824) $ (122,824)

   Net Change in Fund Balance $ 21,020 $ 21,020 $ (192,366) $ (213,386)

Fund Balance - January 1 372,283 372,283 372,283 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 393,303 $ 393,303 $ 179,917 $ (213,386)
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Contributions in Contributions as a

Statutorily Relation to the Contribution Percentage of

Fiscal Required Statutorily Required Deficiency Covered Covered

Year Ending Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll

December 31, 2020 16,498$                  16,498$                      -$                            221,039$                7.5%

December 31, 2019 15,680$                  15,680$                      -$                            209,067$                7.5%

December 31, 2018 13,454$                  13,454$                      -$                            179,387$                7.5%

December 31, 2017 12,565$                  12,565$                      -$                            167,533$                7.5%

December 31, 2016 12,653$                  12,653$                      -$                            168,706$                7.5%

December 31, 2015 12,150$                  12,150$                      -$                            162,974$                7.5%

Note:  This schedule is intended to present 10 years and will be completed as information becomes available.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND PENSION PLAN
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Schedule 3

Proportionate
Proportionate Share of the 
Share of the Net Pension 

State of Liability and Proportionate Share
Minnesota's Proportionate of the Net Pension Plan Fiduciary Net

Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Share of the Liability as a Position as a 
of the Share of the Share of the State of Minnesota's Percentage of its Percentage of the

Fiscal Net Pension Net Pension Net Pension Share of the Net Covered Covered Total Pension
Year Ending Liability Liability (Asset) Liability Pension Liability Payroll Payroll Liability

June 30, 2020 0.0029% 173,868$             5,201$                 179,069$             219,914$    79.06% 79.06%
June 30, 2019 0.0026% 143,748$             4,500$                 148,248$             190,677$    75.39% 80.23%
June 30, 2018 0.0027% 149,785$             4,933$                 154,718$             186,928$    80.13% 79.53%
June 30, 2017 0.0024% 153,214$             1,939$                 155,153$             169,253$    90.52% 75.90%
June 30, 2016 0.0026% 211,107$             2,826$                 213,933$             166,322$    126.93% 68.90%
June 30, 2015 0.0029% 145,111$             -$                         145,111$             179,398$    80.89% 78.20%

CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND PENSION PLAN

Note:  This schedule is intended to present 10 years and will be completed as information becomes available.
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 
I. Budgetary Information 

 
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

 
In September of each year, the City Council drafts a preliminary budget after giving interested 
citizens a reasonable opportunity to be heard.  The final budget is approved in December and a 
certified levy is sent to Otter Tail County.  Truth in taxation requires that a final levy may not exceed 
a preliminary levy.    

 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department.  The legal level of budgetary 
control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the 
departmental level.     

 
II. Excess of Expenditures Over Budget 
 

The following departments had expenditures in excess of budget for the year ended December 31, 
2020: 

 
Expenditures Budget Excess

General Fund
 General government
  Administration 24,573$               22,850$               (1,723)$                
  Elections 2,447                   -                           (2,447)                  
  Insurance 2,632                   -                           (2,632)                  
  Other general government 9,681                   -                           (9,681)                  
 Public safety
  Fire relief association 14,809                 -                           (14,809)                
 Sanitation
  Recycling center 11,834                 7,515                   (4,319)                  
 Culture and recreation
  Parks 72,243                 59,399                 (12,844)                
  Trails 2,354                   -                           (2,354)                  
 Debt service
  Principal retirement 17,562                 -                           (17,562)                
 Capital outlay
  General government 55,346                 -                           (55,346)                
  Highways and streets 26,664                 17,000                 (9,664)                  
  Culture and recreation 447,954               15,000                 (432,954)              
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III. Net Pension Liability 

 
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was used in the actuarial 
valuation for purposes of determining the actuarially determined contribution rates. The assumptions 
and methods used for this actuarial valuation were recommend by PERA and adopted by the City 
Council. 
 
General Employees Fund 
 
2020 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions  

• The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%.  
• The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%.  
• Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. 

The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25% less than previous rates. 
• Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. 

The changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer Rule of 90 and early 
retirements.  

• Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. 
The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the previous rates for years 2-5 and 
slightly higher thereafter.  

• Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. 
The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and females.  

• The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014 table 
to the Pub-2010 General Mortality table, with adjustments. The base mortality table for disabled 
annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 disabled annuitant mortality table to the PUB-2010 
General/Teacher disabled annuitant mortality table, with adjustments.  

• The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019.  
• The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year older. 
• The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option 

changed from 35% to 45%. The assumed number of married female new retirees electing the 100% 
Joint & Survivor option changed from 15% to 30%. The corresponding number of married new 
retirees electing the Life annuity option was adjusted accordingly. 
 
Changes in Plan Provisions 

• Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the period July 1, 2020 
through December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was eliminated for privatizations 
occurring after June 30, 2020. 

 
2019 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions  
• The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018. 
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2019 Changes (Continued) 
Changes in Plan Provisions 
• The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from $31.0 

million to $21.0 million per year.  The State’s special funding contribution was changed 
prospectively, requiring $16.0 million due per year through 2031. 

 
2018 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions         
• The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017. 
• The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2044 and 2.50 

percent per year thereafter to 1.25 percent per year.     
 
Changes in Plan Provisions 
• The augmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year period 

starting July 1, 2019, resulting in actuarial equivalence after June 30, 2024.  
• Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent, beginning 

July 1, 2018.  
• Deferred augmentation was changed to 0.00 percent, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation 

that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply. 
• Contribution stabilizer provisions were repealed.  
• Postretirement benefit increases were changed from 1.00 percent per year with a provision to 

increase to 2.50 percent upon attainment of 90.00 percent funding ratio to 50.00 percent of the 
Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment, not less than 1.00 percent and not more than 1.50 
percent, beginning January 1, 2019.  

• For retirements on or after January 1, 2024, the first benefit increase is delayed until the retiree 
reaches normal retirement age; does not apply to Rule of 90 retirees, disability benefit recipients, 
or survivors.  

• Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions. 
   
2017 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
• The combined service annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.80 percent for active members 

and 60.00 percent for vested and non-vested deferred members. The revised CSA load are now 
0.00 percent for active member liability, 15.00 percent for vested deferred member liability, and 
3.00 percent for non-vested deferred member liability. 

• The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed for 1.00 percent per year for all 
years to 1.00 percent per year through 2044 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter.  

 
Changes in Plan Provisions 
• The State’s contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund equals $16,000,000 in 

2017 and 2018, and $6,000,000 thereafter. 
• The Employer Supplemental Contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund 

changed from $21,000,000 to $31,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031.  The state’s 
contribution changed from $16,000,000 to $6,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031. 

 
2016 Changes         
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
• The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 

2035 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter to 1.00 percent per year for all years. 
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2016 Changes         
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

• The assumed investment return was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent.  The single 
discount rate changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent.  

• Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study June 30, 2015.  The assumed 
future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 
percent for payroll growth and 2.50 percent for inflation. 

 
Changes in Plan Provisions 
• There have been no changes since the prior valuation. 
 
2015 Changes         
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
• The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 

2030 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter to 1.00 percent per year through 2035 and 2.50 percent 
per year thereafter. 

 
Changes in Plan Provisions         
• On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General 

Employees Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increase the 
fiduciary plan net position by $892 million.  Upon consolidation, state and employer 
contributions were revised; the State’s contribution of $6.0 million, which meets the special 
funding situation definition, was due September 2015. 
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CITY OF VERGAS
VERGAS, MINNESOTA

Schedule 4

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Shared Revenue
  State
    Local government aid $ 36,440
    Market value credit 772

    Total Shared Revenue $ 37,212

Grants
  Local
    Otter Tail County $ 5,000

  State
    Minnesota Department of 
      Natural Resources $ 250,705
      Public Safety 900

      Total State Grants $ 251,605

  Federal
     Department of 
      Treasury $ 27,349

    Total Grants $ 283,954

      Total Intergovernmental Revenue $ 321,166
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
City Council 
City of Vergas 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and 
each major fund  of the City of Vergas as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated June 29, 2021.  The governmental activities had a qualified opinion because the City did not adopt the 
provisions of GASB Statement No. 68. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Vergas’ internal control 
over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will 
not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 

1541 Highway 59 South | Thief River Falls, MN 56701 | Phone: 218-681-4078 | choffman@hpmaudit.com 
 

Colleen Hoffman, Director 
Crystelle Philipp, CPA 
Marit Martell, CPA 
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that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses as items 2020-001, 
2020-002, and 2020-003, that we consider to be significant deficiencies.   
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Vergas’ financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Minnesota Legal Compliance 
 
The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota 
Statute, § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested:  contracting and bidding, deposits and 
investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and tax 
increment financing.  Our audit considered all of the listed categories, except we did not test for compliance with the 
provisions for tax increment financing because the City of Vergas has no tax increment financing districts.   
 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City failed to comply 
with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities.  However, our audit was not directed 
primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance.  Accordingly, had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the City’s noncompliance with the above 
referenced provisions. 
 
City of Vergas’ Responses to Findings   
 
The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit have been included in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Responses.  The City’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting, 
compliance and the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities and the result of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication 
is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Hoffman, Philipp, & Martell, PLLC 
June 29, 2021 
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 SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

 
I.         FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDITED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
             INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
      PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ITEMS NOT RESOLVED 
 
Finding Number:  2020-001 
Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2006-001, 2019-001 
Finding Title:  Segregation of Duties 
 

Criteria: Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control. This responsibility 
includes the internal controls over the various accounting cycles, the fair presentation of the financial 
statements and related notes, and the accuracy and completeness of all financial records and related 
information. Adequate segregation of duties is a key internal control in an organization’s accounting system.  
 
Condition: Due to the limited number of personnel within the City, segregation of the accounting functions 
necessary to ensure adequate internal accounting control is not possible. Generally, one person is responsible 
for billing, collecting, depositing, and recording receipts as well as reconciling bank accounts.  
 
Context: The small size and available staffing within the City limits the internal control that management can 
design and implement into the organization.  
 
Effect: Without adequate segregation of duties, opportunities for errors and irregularities or fraudulent 
activities to occur are created and may not be detected in a timely manner. 
 
Cause: This is not unusual in operations the size of the City, where, because of staffing limitations, it is 
impractical to achieve a desirable level of segregation of duties. Management has determined that, given 
limited resources, it is not feasible to achieve the desired level of segregation of duties. 
 
Recommendation: Management should continually be aware that segregation of duties is not adequate from 
an internal control point of view. We recommend the City Council be aware that limited staffing causes 
inherent risks in safeguarding the City’s assets and the proper reporting of financial activity. We recommend 
the City Council continue to implement oversite procedures and monitor those procedures to determine if they 
are still effective internal controls. 
 
City’s Response:  The small size of the City limits the number of personnel available to perform separate 
duties, however, the City Council is aware of this situation and provides oversight and review. 

 
Finding Number:  2020-002 
Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2007-001, 2019-002 
Finding Title:  Internal Controls 
 

Criteria: The financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Vergas’s management. Internal control 
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reliable assurance about the achievement of the 
City’s objectives with regard to reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. These controls must include a process for monitoring to ensure, effectiveness and efficiency of 
operations.  
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Condition: Internal controls over financial reporting and the safeguarding of assets against unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition include controls related to financial reporting and operational objectives. The 
City does not have a process for monitoring to ensure the internal controls are effective. 
 
Context: Although the City of Vergas has a system of internal control in spite of limited staff, they do not 
have written documentation of the process for monitoring those controls. 
 
Effect: Without a documented process for monitoring internal controls, the City cannot provide assurance 
about the reliability of financial reporting or the effectiveness and efficiency of operations. 
 

Cause: The City of Vergas has never formalized its policies and procedures for internal controls and 
monitoring of those controls into a written comprehensive document. 
 

Recommendation: We recommend the City formalize written documentation of their internal controls and 
the monitoring process to ensure the reliability of financial reporting and the effectiveness and efficiency of 
operations.  
 
City’s Response:  The City does have some written policies and continues to work on improving internal 
controls over financial reporting and compliance and the documentation of those controls. 

 
Finding Number:  2020-003 
Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2015-001, 2019-003 
Finding Title:  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions  
  

Criteria: The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions, which provides accounting and reporting standards for pensions offered to 
retirees. GASB 68 was first applicable to the City of Vergas for the year ended December 31, 2015.  

 

Condition: GASB Statement 68 has not yet been fully implemented by the City of Vergas as required. The 
City has reported net pension liability for City employees, but this does not include members of the Fire 
Relief Association. The City Fire Relief Association has not undergone an actuarial study to determine its net 
pension liability (asset).  
 

Context: The City should encourage the Fire Relief Association to obtain an actuarial study to determine its 
net pension liability (asset) for its inclusion in the City’s financial statements.  
 

Effect: Because the City of Vergas has not fully complied with the requirements of GASB Statement 68, a 
qualified opinion is issued on the governmental activities of the City of Vergas.  
 

Cause: The Fire Relief Association has not hired an actuary to determine its net pension liability (asset) to 
meet the requirements for financial reporting under GASB Statement 68. 
 

Recommendation: We recommend the City Council encourage the Fire Relief Association to obtain an 
actuarial study to determine its net pension liability (asset) for inclusion in the City’s financial statements.  
 
City’s Response:  The City will encourage the Fire Relief Association to obtain an actuarial study to 
determine its net pension liability (asset) to stay in compliance with GASB Statement 68 for pensions offered 
to its retirees. 

 

Page 118 of 161



 
 

Page 59 

 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
Finding Number:  2020-001 
Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2006-001, 2019-001 
Finding Title:  Segregation of Duties  
 
 Name of Contact Person Responsible for Corrective Action:  City Council and management. 
 

Corrective Action Planned: The City of Vergas is aware of the segregation of duties issue.  Due to 
limited staffing, segregation of duties is not always possible.  Management will implement oversight 
procedures where and whenever possible. 

 
Anticipated Completion Date:  Ongoing.  The small size of the City limits the number of personnel 
available to perform separate duties, however, the City Council is aware of this situation and provides 
oversight and review. 

 
Finding Number:  2020-002 

 Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2007-001, 2019-002 
 Finding Title:  Internal Controls  
 

Name of Contact Person Responsible for Corrective Action:  Julie Lammers, City Clerk-Treasurer-
Liquor Store Manager, and City Council 

 
Corrective Action Planned: The City will formalize written documentation of their internal controls 
and the monitoring process to ensure the reliability of financial reporting and the effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations. 
 
Anticipated Completion Date:  Ongoing.  The City does have some written policies and continues to 
work on improving internal controls over financial reporting and compliance and the documentation of 
those controls.  

 
Finding Number:  2020-003 
Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2015-001, 2019-003 
Finding Title:  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions  
 
 Name of Contact Person Responsible for Corrective Action:  City Council and management 
 

Corrective Action Planned: The City will encourage the Fire Relief Association to obtain an actuarial 
study to determine its net pension liability (asset) to stay in compliance with GASB Statement 68 for 
pensions offered to its retirees. 

 
Anticipated Completion Date:  December 31, 2021. 
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SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 
  
 Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2006-001, 2019-001 
 Finding Title:  Segregation of Duties  
 

Summary of Condition:  Due to the limited number of personnel within the City, segregation of the accounting 
functions necessary to ensure adequate internal accounting control is not possible.  
 
Summary of Corrective Action: Management is continually aware that segregation of duties is not adequate from 
an internal control point of view. The City Council continues to implement oversite procedures and monitor those 
procedures to determine if they are still effective. 
 

  Status:  Not fully corrected. 
 
 Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2007-001, 2019-002 
 Finding Title:  Internal Controls  
 

Summary of Condition:  Internal controls over financial reporting and the safeguarding of assets against 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition include controls related to financial reporting and operational 
objectives. The City does not have a process for monitoring to ensure the internal controls are effective. 
 
Summary of Corrective Action: The City has begun to formalize written documentation of their internal controls 
and the monitoring process to ensure the reliability of financial reporting and the effectiveness and efficiency of 
operations.  
 

  Status:  Not fully corrected. 
 

 Prior Years Audit Finding Numbers:  2015-001, 2019-003 
 Finding Title:  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions  
 

Summary of Condition:  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, which provides accounting and reporting standards for pensions 
offered to retirees. GASB 68 was first applicable to the City of Vergas for the year ended December 31, 2015. 
GASB Statement 68 has not yet been fully implemented by the City of Vergas as required.  The City Fire Relief 
Association has not undergone an actuarial study to determine its net pension liability (asset).  
 

Summary of Corrective Action: The City has encouraged the Fire Relief Association to obtain an actuarial study 
to determine its net pension liability (assets) for its inclusion in the City’s financial statements.  
 
Status:  Not fully corrected. 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

12. Ordinance Updates

 

 

Files Attached

• An Ordinance Establishing Truck Routes in the City of Vergas.pdf 

• An Ordinance Restricting the Operation of ATV's for Certain Streets.pdf 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

16. Construction Permits

a.  150 E Herman St
b.  1011 East Scharf Ave
c. 105 Main St

 

 

Files Attached

• Construction Permit - 150 E Herman St.pdf 

• Construction Permit - 1011 Eat Scharf Ave.pdf 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

18. Veterans Memorial

 

 

Files Attached

• Lion's Letter.pdf 

• Veteran's Memorial Petition.pdf 

• Veteran's Memorial Proposal to use City property.pdf 

• Veteran's Memorial Construction Permit.pdf 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

20. Staff Reports

League of MN Cities Conference - Albright, Fischer, Lammersa.

MN Municipal Clerks and Finance Officers Conferenceb.

Utilities Superintendent Reportc.

Liquor Store Manager Reportd.

 

 

Files Attached

• DuFrane July 2021 council report.pdf 

• DuFrane Report - Est_81_from_Mackner_Excavating_Inc._8452.pdf 

• 7-13-21 Liquor Store Manager Report.pdf 
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July 2021 Council Report from Utilities Superintendent. 

1. Parks. 

a. Culvert by the picnic shelter was cleaned out by Dewey’s septic. 

b. Park blocks were pulled out and replaced. New ones have not had the rebar pounded in 

them yet. 

c. Rope buoys for swimming area are on back order.   

 

2. City farm. 

a. See attachment. Mackner excavating. It is cheaper then Sonneberg excavating estimate. 

 

3. Wastewater 

a. No discharge in the month of June. 

4. Water 

a. Still working on dehumidifier. Zitzow electric confirmed motor was bad. Klj was looking into 

dehumidifier. 

5. Streets 

a. Driveway service will be doing some patch work, next week. 
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Estimate
Date

6/17/2021

Estimate #

81

Name / Address

Mackner Excavating, Inc.

30523 State Hwy 34
Detroit Lakes, MN 56501

Project

Your consideration of this proposal is greatly appreciated!

Customer Signature

Total

Description Qty Cost Total

demo   clean up at 310 W Lake street..     clean up site back fill
basement with fill on site... Price includes loading hualing and any
landfill fees

3,000.00 3,000.00

_____________________________________

$3,000.00

Page 159 of 161



Liquor Store Manager Report: 

Financial: 

June Sales $96,634.31 =$474.59 above June 2020, $21,919.09 above 2019 

June Expenses $80,474.18= $3095.96 below June 2020, $2596.87 above 2019  

Annual Balance of $31,328.44=$925.52 below of 2020 and $8,323.73 above 2019  

Profit for 2021 is currently $31,328.44. 

Requesting transfer of $15,000 to general fund. 

Employees:   

Currently at 5 part-time employees. 

Request pay increases for the following employees, to coincide with our current pay-step structure.   

Jezmae Burkett from $10.60 to $11.22 an hour (one year anniversary on June 19) 

Paul Haarstick from $10.60 to $11.00 an hour 

Isabella Hiltner from $11.00 to $11.22 an hour 

Tammy Shields from $12.50 to $12.90 an hour 

Building:  

Designated area for manager office has been established.  Arvig will hook up internet on July 23. 
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City Council 
2021 July Council Meeting 

Vergas Event Center and Zoom Id number 267-094-2170 (password 56587) 
6:30 PM on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 

21. Information & Announcements

 MN Rural Water Conference – Aug.24-26, 2021 (DuFrane) St Clouda.

 Clerks Advanced Academy-September 23-24, 2021 (Lammers)b.

Municipal Beverage Association (MMBA), September 25-28, 2021 (Lammers) Arrowwoodc.
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